
1

City of Kelowna
Regular Council Meeting

AGENDA

Monday, March 18, 2013

1:30 pm

Council Chamber

City Hall, 1435 Water Street

Pages

1. Call to Order
This meeting is open to the public and all respresentations to Council form part of
the public record. A live audio feed is being broadcast and recorded by CastaNet and
a delayed broadcast is shown on Shaw Cable.

2. Confirmation of Minutes 4 - 8
Regular PM Meeting - March 11, 2013

3. Public in Attendance

3.1 Alternator Centre for Contemporary Art - Annual Report 9 - 21
To update Council on the activities of the Alternator Centre for Contemporary
Art.

4. Development Application Reports & Related Bylaws

4.1 Official Community Plan Bylaw Amendment Application No. OCP13-0001 and
Rezoning Application No. Z13-0002 - 1242-1244 Pheasant Street

22 - 40

Mayor to invite the Applicant, or Applicant's Representative to come forward.

To consider a staff recommendation NOT change the future land use
designation of the subject property from the Multiple Unit Residential
(Medium Density) designation to the Multiple Unit Residential (Low Density)
designation; To consider a staff recomemdnation NOT to rezone the subject
property from the RU6 – Two Dwelling Housing zone to the RM1 – Four Dwelling
Housing zone in order to legalize an existing four-plex building.



2

4.2 Rezoning Application No. Z13-0010 - Various Addresses within the Wilden
Neighbourhood

41 - 46

This application is considered to be a minor amendment to the Phase 2C
Wilden neighbourhood. The amendment is to address inconsistencies with the
approved subdivision plan and the existing zones. Essentially, it is a ‘clean-up’
amendment to ensure that all uses are accurately reflected.

4.2.1 Bylaw No. 10820 (Z13-0010) - Various Addresses within the Wilden
Neighbourhood

47 - 49

To give Bylaw No. 10820 first reading.

4.3 Text Amendment Application No. TA13-0002 and Text Amendment No. TA13-
0003 - Amendments to Zoning Bylaw No. 8000

50 - 51

To consider combining the two text amendment bylaws into one text
amendment bylaw.

4.3.1 Bylaw No. 10808 (TA13-0002) - Amendment to Zoning Bylaw No. 8000
- RM3 Low Density Multiple Housing Zone

52 - 52

To rescind first reading given to Bylaw No. 10808 and to direct staff
to close the file for Text Amendment Application No. TA13-0002.

4.3.2 Bylaw No. 10816 (TA13-0003) - Miscellaneous Amendments to Zoning
Bylaw No. 8000

53 - 61

To amend Bylaw No. 10816 at first reading.

5. Non-Development Reports & Related Bylaws

5.1 Volume 2 - Carryovers, 2013 Financial Plan 62 - 64
To present the Volume 2 – 2013 Financial Plan to Council for approval and
inclusion in the 2013 Financial Plan.

5.2 Intermunicipal Transportation Service and Regulation Bylaw 65 - 79
To formally establish the Sustainable Transportation Partnership of the
Central Okanagan, a strategic partnership of local and regional governments in
the Central Okanagan to coordinate the regional delivery of sustainable
transportation programs and projects in support of common regional policy,
plans and interests (economic, social and environmental).

5.2.1 Bylaw No. 10830 - Intermunicipal Transportation Service and
Regulation Bylaw

80 - 97

To give Bylaw No. 10830 first, second and third readings.

5.3 Downtown Kelowna Association 2013 Budget 98 - 113
To authorize the 2013 levy on Class 5 light industry and Class 6 business/other
properties located within the Downtown Business Improvement Area.



3

5.4 Uptown Rutland Business Association 2013 Budget 114 - 127
To authorize the 2013 levy on Class 5 light industry and Class 6 business/other
properties located within the Uptown Rutland Business Improvement Area.

5.5 Utility Billing Customer Care Services 128 - 131
To ensure that customer care billing services will not be interrupted or
otherwise affected in the event of a transfer of the City’s electrical utility to
FortisBC.

5.5.1 Bylaw No. 10821 - Amendment No. 4 to Utility Billing Customer Care
Services Bylaw No. 8754

132 - 133

To give Bylaw No. 10821 first, second and third readings.

5.6 Air Carrier Airport Use Agreement with Air North Charter & Training - Kelowna
International Airport

134 - 152

To obtain Council’s consent and approval to enter into an Air Carrier Airport
Use Agreement with Air North Charter & Training Ltd.

5.7 Amendment to Airport Fees Bylaw No. 7982 - Kelowna International Airport 153 - 155
To obtain Council’s approval to amend the Kelowna International Airport’s
fees and charges by amending Bylaw No. 7982.

5.7.1 Bylaw No. 10819 - Amendment No. 26 to Airport Fee Bylaw No. 7982 156 - 158
To give Bylaw No. 7982 first, second and third readings.

5.8 Free Downtown Parking for Small Shop Saturdays in 2013 159 - 161
To provide free parking in the downtown area on three (3) Saturdays
throughout 2013.

5.9 John Howard Society – Final Report Regarding Emergency Grant 162 - 164
This report responds to a service request from Council for a report back as to
how an emergency grant of $5,000, authorized by Council in October, 2011,
benefited the John Howard Society’s Adult Restorative Justice Program.

6. Mayor and Councillor Items

7. Termination



4



5



6



7



8



 

Presentation to Kelowna City Council  - March 18, 2012 9



We are an Artist Run Centre at the  

Rotary Centre for the Arts in the heart of  

Kelowna’s Cultural District. 

10



What we do: 

• We Present exhibitions, site-specific installations, performances, 

interactive works and film-screenings  

• We Provide support for emerging and alternative local artists by 

providing a network of collaboration and sharing, as well as studio 

space, workshops, mentorships and exhibition opportunities. 

• We Create a gathering place for energetic and creative discourse. 

• ACCA is committed to supporting people to live as artists through 

adherence to CAR/FAC. 

11



Funding and Attendance Outline 

Statistical Summary 

12



2012 Highlights - Professional Programming 

David Wilson Power Comes in the Form of a Circle 
Attendance 805 

 

13



2012 Highlights - Professional Programming 

Swintak 10 Ideas for Kelowna 
Attendance 928 

 

 

 

14



2012 Highlights - Community Programming 

Members’ Gallery  
Seldom Seen, Orchard Valley Quilters Guild 

 

15



2012 Highlights - Community Programming 

Members’ Gallery  
Studio 9, Pixel Culture 

 

16



2012 Achievements 

Community Engagement  
& Organizational Infrastructure 

• Attendance increase of over 50% 

• Revenue from Memberships increased over 300% 

• Revised communications to reduce discipline-specific language 

• Increased our own community participation - New partnerships with    

Okanagan Co+Lab, Okanagan Young Professionals and other Arts, 

Culture and Heritage Producers 

• Improved our board activities, job descriptions, staff support 

• Increased critical programming through the AlterKnowledge series 

17



2013 Goals 

Diversify Revenue 

& Improve our Financial Sustainability 

• Increase revenue and community participation in our fundraisers 

through the development of 4 distinct fundraising activities aimed at 

different sectors of the community 

• Continue community outreach activities - establish new 

partnerships with younger members 

• Continue to improve our critical discussion on contemporary art 

through writing workshops, and turning to local critical writers to 

provide exhibition statements and reviews to contextualize the 

professional work we exhibit for our viewing audience. 

18



Summary 

The Alternator Impact on the Community 

•Showcasing Canadian emerging artists in the Kelowna Area. 

•Acting as an exhibition opportunity for local artists – we actively 

encourage submissions by local artist and program to support this 

initiative. Participation is possible at a variety of levels, from amateur to 

professional. 

•Fostering relationships and providing professional practice 

experience to artists-in-training. We aim to be a meeting place for 

artists and creatives of diverse disciplines to allow cross pollination 

and community building amongst the establishing creative disciplines 

in the Okanagan 

19



 

City of Kelowna’s investment in the Alternator allows us to continue 

exhibiting the work of emerging artists, assisting in the interpretation of 

these exhibition through artist talks, exhibition films and essays on the 

themes discussed in the artists’ work. 

 

Recent increases in Alternator funding has been used to secure 

additional staff hours, giving us the ability to continue with our 

enhanced programming schedule. 

20



 

Presentation to Kelowna City Council  - March 18, 2012 21



 

 

REPORT TO COUNCIL 
 
 
 

Date: February 27, 2013 

RIM No. 1250-30 

To: City Manager 

From: Land Use Management, Community Sustainability (BD) 

Application: OCP13-0001 / Z13-0002 Owner: 
Geoff R. & Leanne M. 
Proteau  

Address: 1242 – 1244 Pheasant St Applicant: Graeme James 

Subject: Rezoning Application  

Existing OCP Designation:  Multiple Unit Residential (medium density) 

Proposed OCP Designation:  Multiple Unit Residential (low density) 

Existing Zone:  RU6- Two Dwelling Housing 

Proposed Zone: RM1 – Four Dwelling Housing 

 

1.0 Recommendation 

THAT Official Community Plan Bylaw Amendment No. OCP13-0001 to amend Map 4.1 of the 
Kelowna 2030 – Official Community Plan Bylaw No. 10500, by changing the Future Land Use 
designation of Strata Lot 1 & 2, District Lot 137, ODYD Strata plan KAS1353 together with an 
interest in the common property in proportion to the unit entitlement of the strata lot as shown 
on Form 1, located on 1242 – 1244 Pheasant Street, Kelowna, BC from the Multiple Unit 
Residential (Medium Density) designation to the Multiple Unit Residential (Low Density) 
designation, as shown on Map “A” attached to the Report of Land Use Management Department 
dated February 27, 2013, NOT be considered by Council; 
 
THAT Rezoning Application No. Z13-0002 to amend the City of Kelowna Zoning Bylaw No. 8000 by 
changing the zoning classification of Strata Lot 1 & 2, District Lot 137, ODYD Strata plan KAS1353 
together with an interest in the common property in proportion to the unit entitlement of the 
strata lot as shown on Form 1, located on 1242 – 1244 Pheasant Street, Kelowna, BC, from the 
RU6 – Two Dwelling Housing zone to the RM1 – Four Dwelling Housing zone NOT be, approved by 
Council. 
 
2.0      Purpose  

For Council to not consider the OCP amendment and corresponding rezoning application from the 
RU6 – Two Dwelling Housing zone to the RM1 – Four Dwelling Housing zone of the subject property 
to legalize an existing four-plex building. 

22



OCP13-0001 / Z13-0002 – Page 2 
 
 

 

3.0      Land Use Management   

The future land use designation of this property provides opportunity to construct a greater 
multi-family housing density form than is being sought with this application. Staff acknowledge 
that the development at 1277 Gordon Drive has hindered the full development potential of the 
remaining properties on this block. However, if a coordinated land assembly of the remaining 
sites were to occur, the land could be utilized to develop a row house concept, taking advantage 
of the proximity to downtown, the multi-modal corridor and easy access to various amenities. 
Accordingly, the OCP amendment to low-density multi-family for the subject property and those 
lots immediately to the west would be supported subject to a comprehensive land assembly. 
 
The rezoning request to the RM1- Fourplex zone to legalize an existing 4-plex jeopardizes the 
opportunity for a future land assembly.  Legalization of the four-plex use is a further investment 
in the property which would hinder a comprehensive development on this block. Notably, there 
are extensive BC Building Code requirements to convert a single family dwelling to a multi-family 
dwelling which are listed in the technical comments. To facilitate improvements, interior walls 
must be removed to construct ducting for separate plumbing and heating equipment.  
Retrofitting the interior floor plan to meet BC Building code requirements may prove to be a 
considerable challenge.  
 
Additionally, no exterior building upgrades are proposed, which encumbers Staff’s ability to 
ensure that the building design meets the guidelines of the multi-use residential Official 
Community Plan objectives.  Given that the building is already existing, design amendments are 
limited in terms of practical upgrades. The front elevation is dominated by driveways and 
garages, with only two of the principal entrances easily identifiable. The landscaping is 
dominated by a large hedge which does not allow for any pedestrian interface with the site.  

Staff do not condone the conversion of a building without the appropriate approvals, permits and 
land use in place.  Bylaw Services investigations started in 2004 for a four-plex on this site and it 
is through recent enforcement (ticketing) that the owner has entered into a compliance 
agreement which requires the owner to initiate the legalization of the use on the site. Letters of 
support for the rezoning application from all abutting and adjoining neighbours have been 
provided. 

4.0     Proposal 

4.1 Background 

This property has been owned by the same individual since the building permit was obtained to 
construct a duplex on the site in 1993.  Bylaw Services began investigations for complaints of a 
four-plex on the site in 2004. The conversion to a four-plex occurred without the appropriate 
zoning or permits in place.   

4.2  Project Description 

The subject property is designated Multiple Unit Residential (Medium Density) (MRM) in the 
current Official Community Plan (OCP), is zoned for RU6- Two Dwelling Housing and is located 
within the Permanent Growth Boundary. The applicant is seeking an OCP amendment from 
Multiple Unit Residential (Medium Density) (MRM) to the Multiple Unit Residential (Low Density) 
(MRL) land use designation to accompany the rezoning to the RM1-Fourplex housing zone. 
 
The building is a typical side by side duplex and through this rezoning, the applicant is seeking to 
legalize 4 units. The two storey building has entrances to the main level through the front of the 

23



OCP13-0001 / Z13-0002 – Page 3 
 
 

 

building with access to the upper 3 bedroom units via side doors. Required parking is achieved on 
the site by developing 3 additional spaces off the flanking street. Private outdoor open space is 
provided on elevated decks for the upper units and on patios under the decks for the main floor 
units. The remaining property is landscaped with turf and fencing around the side and rear of the 
yard.  

Should the OCP amendment and rezoning by successful, a variance to legalize the rear yard 
would be required. Further, a Development Permit (executed at a Staff level) is required to 
evaluate the form and character, however no exterior improvements to the building or landscape 
are being proposed.  

4.3 Site Context 

The subject property is located on the west side of Pheasant Street on the edge of the 
Dilworth/Glenmore/Clifton area of Kelowna. The area is across from the industrial uses off 
Clement and next to Northwood Retirement Resort located on Gordon Drive.  The surrounding 
properties are zoned as follows: 

Orientation Zoning Land Use 

North I4 – Central Industrial  Various light industrial  

East RU6 – Two Dwelling Housing Single family dwelling 

South RM5 – Medium Density Multiple Housing   Private Nursing Home 

West RU6 – Two Dwelling Housing Single family dwelling 

 

4.4   Subject Property Map: 1242- 1244 Pheasant Street 
 

 
  

24



OCP13-0001 / Z13-0002 – Page 4 
 
 

 

4.5 Zoning Analysis 

The proposed application meets the requirements of RM1 – Four Dwelling Housing zone as 
follows:   

Zoning Analysis Table 

CRITERIA RM1 ZONE REQUIREMENTS PROPOSAL 

Existing Lot/Subdivision Regulations 
Lot Area 800 m2 (corner lot) 802 m2 

Lot Width 22 m 27.4 m 

Lot Depth 30 m 29.3 m 

Development Regulations 

Site Coverage (buildings) 
 

40% 
Building Footprint: 253m2 

31.5% 

Site Coverage 
 (buildings, driveway and parking) 

50% 50% 

Floor Area Ratio 0.6 
Total Floor area: 452.4m2 

0.56 

Height 9.5 m / 2.5 storeys 7.01 m  

Front Yard 4.5m to dwelling 5.18 m 

Side Yard (west) 2.3 m (2 – 2.5 storeys) 7.59 m 

Side Yard (east) 4.5m (flanking street) 7.62 m 

Rear Yard  7.5m (2 – 2.5 storeys) 3.35 m 

Other Regulations 

Minimum Parking Requirements 
2 spaces/ 3 bedroom unit 

1.5 spaces/ 2 bedroom unit 
Total required: 7 spaces 

7 spaces provided 
(Garages are allocated  

to upper units) 

Bicycle Parking 
Class 1: 0.5 dwelling unit 
Class II: 0.1 dwelling unit 

Total required: 3 

No common Bicycle parking 
provided, however each unit has 
storage units where individual 

bicycle parking is 
accommodated. 

Private Open Space 
25 m2 per unit 

Total required: 100m2 

26 m2 per upper deck 
& patios provided under deck for 

ground level units 

 A variance to the required rear yard is being sought.  

5.0      Current Development Policies   

5.1 Kelowna Official Community Plan (OCP) 

Evaluation Checklist (OCP Amendment Applications)1 

Evaluate development applications that require an OCP amendment on the basis of the extent to 
which they comply with underlying OCP objectives, including the following: 

 Does the proposed development contribute to preserving lands with slopes greater than 
30%? Yes. 

 Does the proposed development respect the OCP Permanent Growth Boundary (OCP Map 
4.1)? Yes. 

 Does the proposed development feature a mix of residential, employment, institutional, 
and/or recreational uses within individual buildings or larger development projects? No. 

 Is the proposed development located in an Urban Centre? No. 
                                                      
1
 City of Kelowna Official Community Plan, Policy No. 5.40.1, (Development Process Chapter) 

25



OCP13-0001 / Z13-0002 – Page 5 
 
 

 

 Does the proposed development increase the supply of affordable (as defined in the OCP) 
apartments or townhouses? Uncertain. The units would likely be rented at a generally 
affordable rate. 

 Is the property serviced with water and City sanitary sewer at the time of application? 
Yes. 

 Could the proposed project be built at no financial cost to the City? (This should consider 
operational and maintenance costs.) Development Cost Charges to be paid at time of 
Building Permit review. 

 Would the proposed project help decrease the rate of travel by private automobile, 
especially during peak hours? No. 

 Is there transit service within 400 metres of non-residential projects or major employment 
generators (50+ employees)?  Yes. 

 Does the proposed project involve redevelopment of currently under-utilized, urbanized 
land? The OCP considers multiple unit medium density residential development as the 
highest use of the land and this is a down-designation of the land use. 

 Does the proposed project result in the creation of substantially more public open space 
than would be available if the development were not to proceed (not including required 
open space dedications or non-developable areas)? No. 

 Is there a deficiency of properties within the applicable Sector (see Map 5.4) that already 
have the required OCP designation? No. 

 Does the project avoid negative impacts (shadowing, traffic, etc.) on adjoining properties 
where those adjoining properties are not slated for land use changes? No changes to the 
built form are proposed. 

 Is the project consistent with the height principles established in the OCP? Yes. 

Development Process 

Compact Urban Form.2 Develop a compact urban form that maximizes the use of existing 
infrastructure and contributes to energy efficient settlement patterns. This will be done by 
increasing densities (approximately 75 - 100 people and/or jobs located within a 400 metre 
walking distance of transit stops is required to support the level of transit service) through 
development, conversion, and re-development within Urban Centres (see Map 5.3) in particular 
and existing areas as per the provisions of the Generalized Future Land Use Map 4.1. 

6.0 Technical Comments   

6.1 Building & Permitting Department 

1) Development Cost Charges (DCC’s) are required to be paid prior to issuance of any 
Building Permits. 
2) Operable bedroom windows required as per the 2012 edition of the British Columbia 
Building Code (BCBC 2012). 
3) Separate and fire protected means of egress from each dwelling unit   
4) Fire separations as per BCBC 2012 between suites both above and adjacent to be 
addressed as per BCBC 2012  
5)  Plumbing requirements as per BCBC Plumbing Code 2012.  
6) Each unit must have its own self contained heat source independent of the other units 
with a duct design and heat-loss calculation for each suite at BP application stage. 
7)  A third part work order will be required for the upgrade of the waterlines.  

                                                      
2 City of Kelowna Official Community Plan, Policy 5.2.3 (Development Process Chapter). 

26



OCP13-0001 / Z13-0002 – Page 6 
 
 

 

8)  Range hood above the stove and the washrooms from each unit to vent separately to 
the exterior of the building. The size of the penetration for this duct thru a fire 
separation is restricted by BCBC 2012, so provide size of ducts and fire separation details 
at time of Building Permit Applications. 
9)  Full Plan check for Building Code related issues will be done at time of Building Permit 
applications. 

6.2 Development Engineering Department 

See Attached. 

6.3 Bylaw Services 

There have been four bylaw investigation for the illegal four-plex logged as: 
SR#220223/SR244511/SR245995/SR056875   
In addition to the contrary to land use investigations, there have been noise and unsightly 
premises complaints for the site. A compliance agreement was entered into in December 
2012 to reduce the ticket cost in exchange for seeking legalizing of the site. If the 
rezoning is not successful, the agreement will be revised to decommissioning of the two 
extra units. 

7.0 Application Chronology   

Date of Application Received: January 4, 2013 
Application detail refinement:  February 28, 2013   

8.0       Alternate Recommendation   

THAT Official Community Plan Bylaw Amendment No. OCP13-0001 to amend Map 4.1 of the 
Kelowna 2030 – Official Community Plan Bylaw No. 10500, by changing the Future Land Use 
designation of Strata Lot 1 & 2, District Lot 137, ODYD Strata plan KAS1353 together with an 
interest in the common property in proportion to the unit entitlement of the strata lot as shown 
on Form 1, located on 1242 – 1244 Pheasant Street, Kelowna, BC from the Multiple Unit 
Residential (Medium Density) designation to the Multiple Unit Residential (Low Density) 
designation, as shown on Map “A” attached to the Report of Land Use Management Department 
dated February 27, 2013, be considered by Council; 

AND THAT Rezoning Application No. Z13-0002 to amend the City of Kelowna Zoning Bylaw No. 
8000 by changing the zoning classification of Strata Lot 1 & 2, District Lot 137, ODYD Strata plan 
KAS1353 together with an interest in the common property in proportion to the unit entitlement 
of the strata lot as shown on Form 1, located on 1242 – 1244 Pheasant Street, Kelowna, BC, from 
the RU6 – Two Dwelling Housing zone to the RM1 – Four Dwelling Housing zone, be considered by 
Council; 
 
AND THAT the Official Community Plan Bylaw Amendment Bylaw and the Zone Amending Bylaw 
be forwarded to a Public Hearing for further consideration; 
 
AND THAT final adoption of the Zone Amending Bylaw be considered in conjunction with 
Council’s consideration of a Development Permit and Development Variance Permit on the 
subject property; 
 
AND THAT final adoption of the Zone Amending Bylaw be considered subsequent to the 
requirements of the Development Engineering Branch being completed to their satisfaction; 

27



OCP13-0001 / Z13-0002 – Page 7 
 
 

 

AND FURTHER THAT the Building and Permitting Branch be provided necessary professional 
reports to satisfy the feasibility of BC Building Code upgrades. 

Report prepared by: 

     
Birte Decloux, Urban Land Use Planner  
 
 

Reviewed by:          Danielle Noble, Manager, Urban Land Use 
 

Approved for Inclusion:    Doug Gilchrist, A/General Manager, Community Sustainability  

Attachments:  

Subject Property Map 
Map “A”  
Survey Certificate 
Site plan 
Elevations 
Landscape Plan 
Context/Site Photos 
Summary of Technical Comments 

28



29



30



31



32



33



34



35



36



37



38



39



40



REPORT TO COUNCIL 
 
 
 

Date: February 22nd, 2013 

RIM No. 1250-30 

To: City Manager 

From: Land Use Management, Community Sustainability (AW) 

Application: Z13-0010 Owner: Various owners 

Address: Various Wilden Properties Applicant: Blenk Development Corporation 

Subject: Rezoning Application 

Existing OCP Designation: Single / Two Unit Residential & Major Park and Open Space  

Existing Zone: 
P3 – Parks and Open Space, RU2H – Medium Lot Housing (Hillside 
Area) & RU1H - Large Lot Housing (Hillside Area) 

Proposed Zone: RU2H – Medium Lot Housing (Hillside Area), P3 – Parks and Open 
Space & RU1H - Large Lot Housing (Hillside Area) 

 

1.0 Recommendation 

THAT Rezoning Application No. Z13-0010 to amend the City of Kelowna Zoning Bylaw No. 8000 by 
changing the zoning classification of Lot 54, Section 5, Township 23, ODYD, Plan EPP9195, 
located at 123 Lost Creek Court, Lot 55, Section 5, Township 23, ODYD, Plan EPP9195, located at 
117 Lost Creek Court and Lot 56, Section 5, Township 23, ODYD, Plan EPP9195, located at 111 
Lost Creek Court, Kelowna B.C. from P3 – Parks & Open Space to RU2H – Medium Lot Housing 
(Hillside Area) be considered by Council.  
 
AND THAT Rezoning Application No. Z13-0010 to amend the City of Kelowna Zoning Bylaw No. 
8000 by changing the zoning classification of a portion of Lot 53, Section 5, Township 23, ODYD, 
Plan EPP9195, located at 155 Lost Creek Court from RU2H – Medium Lot Housing (Hillside Area) to 
P3 – Parks and Open Space and a portion of Lot 52, Section 5, Township 23, ODYD, Plan EPP9195, 
located at 183 Lost Creek Court, Lot 51, Section 5, Township 23, ODYD, Plan EPP9195, located at 
189 Lost Creek Court, Lot 50, Section 5, Township 23, ODYD, Plan EPP9195, 195 Lost Creek Court, 
Lot 49, Section 5, Township 23, ODYD, Plan EPP9195, 201 Lost Creek Court from P3 – Parks and 
Open Space to RU2H – Medium Lot Housing (Hillside Area) and a portion of Lot 72, Section 5, 
Township 23, ODYD, Plan EPP9195, Located at 191 Lost Creek Place, Lot 73, Section 5, Township 
23, ODYD, Plan EPP9195, located at 179 Lost Creek Place, Lot 63, Section 5, Township 23, ODYD, 
Plan EPP9195, located at 246 Lost Creek Lane, Lot 64, Section 5, Township 23, ODYD, Plan 
EPP9195, located at 240 Lost Creek Lane, Lot 65, Section 5, Township 23, ODYD, Plan EPP9195, 
located at 234 Lost Creek Lane, Lot 66, Section 5, Township 23, ODYD, Plan EPP9195, located at 
228 Lost Creek Lane, Lot 67, Section 5, Township 23, ODYD, Plan EPP9195, located at 222 Lost 
Creek Lane, Lot 68, Section 5, Township 23, ODYD, Plan EPP9195, located at 216 Lost Creek 
Lane, Lot 69, Section 5, Township 23, ODYD, Plan EPP9195, located at 210 Lost Creek Lane from 

41



Z13-0010 – Page 2 

 
 

RU1H - Large Lot Housing (Hillside Area) to RU2H – Medium Lot Housing (Hillside Area) and a 
portion of Lot 12, Section 5, Township 23, ODYD, Plan EPP9195, located at 1410 Rocky Point 
Drive from P3 – Parks & Open Space to RU1H - Large Lot Housing (Hillside Area) as shown on Map 
‘B’ attached to the report of the Land Use Management Department, dated February 22nd, 2013 
be considered by Council;    
 
AND FURTHER THAT the Zone Amending Bylaw be forwarded to a Public Hearing for further 
consideration; 

 

2.0 Purpose  

This application is considered to be a minor amendment to the Phase 2C Wilden neighbourhood. 
The amendment is to address inconsistencies with the approved subdivision plan and the existing 
zones. Essentially, it is a ‘clean-up’ amendment to ensure that all uses are accurately reflected. 

 

3.0 Land Use Management  

During the Phase 2C detailed design process, Staff had requested that the                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                              
area originally zoned and designated for public park should be shifted to a nearby alternate site 
that was deemed to be preferable from a park perspective. Staff and the applicant moved 
forward with this change but the zoning was not adjusted at the time of subdivision. As the 
majority of the Wilden development was rezoned when the Area Structure Plan was adopted, it is 
not uncommon to refine the land use line work to reflect the detailed design topographical 
realities.  

 

4.0 Proposal 

4.1 Background 

The Glenmore Highland ASP was adopted in 2002 and has guided the Wilden community 
development. The ASP is a high level document that outlined where development should be 
located and how it should take shape. When the ASP was adopted, most of the land was pre-
zoned at the same time based on the work done through the ASP. Staff recently submitted a 
large amendment for the Wilden development but these properties were not dealt with 
accordingly. 

4.2 Project Description 

This application is considered to be a minor amendment to the Phase 2C Wilden neighbourhood. 
The Phase 2C amendments are to address inconsistencies with the approved subdivision plan and 
the existing OCP Future Land Use Designation and the zone. It is a ‘clean-up’ amendment to 
ensure that all uses are accurately accounted for.  
 
 
 
 
 

42



Z13-0010 – Page 3 

 
 

4.3 Site Context 

 

 

5.0 Technical Comments 

5.1 Building & Permitting Department 

No comment 

5.2 Development Engineering Department 

The adjustment to the zoning boundaries as indicated does not compromise any municipal 
services. 

5.3 Fire Department 

43



Z13-0010 – Page 4 

 
 

Fire Hydrants and flows as per the City of Kelowna Subdivision Bylaw #7900. Wilden is an 
interface area and all areas required fuel modifications as per the Fire Smart Guidelines. 
Fuel treatments should include up to 100 meters from home sites on sloped areas. 

5.4 Fortis BC - Gas 

Upon review of the property referral referencing the above noted matter, please be 
advised that FortisBC facilities will not be adversely affected.   
FortisBC (electric) reviewed the attached referral and based on the information received 
have identified two areas that Fortis will require SRW for protection of existing Fortis 
facilities over the approximate areas shown in the two attached sketch plans.  Fortis has 
no other objections with the proposal subject to any changes to this application which 
would require further review and comment by Fortis.  

6.0 Application Chronology  

Date Application Received: February 21st, 2013 

Report prepared by: 

     
Alec Warrender, Land Use Planner 
 

Reviewed by:           Danielle Noble, Manager of Urban Land Use 
 

Approved for Inclusion:         Doug Gilchrist, A. General Manager, Community Sustainability 

Attachments:  

Subject Property Map 
Map ‘B’ 

 

44



45



46



CITY OF KELOWNA 
 

BYLAW NO. 10820 
Z13-0010 – Various Owners  
Various Addresses (Wilden) 

 

 
A bylaw to amend the "City of Kelowna Zoning Bylaw No. 8000". 
 
The Municipal Council of the City of Kelowna, in open meeting assembled, enacts as follows: 
 

1. THAT City of Kelowna Zoning Bylaw No. 8000 be amended by changing the zoning 
classification of of Lot 54, Section 5, Township 23, ODYD, Plan EPP9195, located at 123 
Lost Creek Court, Lot 55, Section 5, Township 23, ODYD, Plan EPP9195, located at 117 
Lost Creek Court and Lot 56, Section 5, Township 23, ODYD, Plan EPP9195, located at 
111 Lost Creek Court, Kelowna B.C. from P3 – Parks & Open Space to RU2H – Medium 
Lot Housing (Hillside Area); 
 

2. AND THAT City of Kelowna Zoning Bylaw No. 8000 by amended by changing the zoning 
classification of a portion of Lot 53, Section 5, Township 23, ODYD, Plan EPP9195, 
located at 155 Lost Creek Court from RU2H – Medium Lot Housing (Hillside Area) to P3 
– Parks and Open Space as per Map “B1” attached to and forming part of this bylaw; 
 

3. AND THAT City of Kelowna Zoning Bylaw No. 8000 by amended by changing the zoning 
classification of a portion of Lot 52, Section 5, Township 23, ODYD, Plan EPP9195, 
located at 183 Lost Creek Court, Lot 51, Section 5, Township 23, ODYD, Plan EPP9195, 
located at 189 Lost Creek Court, Lot 50, Section 5, Township 23, ODYD, Plan EPP9195, 
195 Lost Creek Court, Lot 49, Section 5, Township 23, ODYD, Plan EPP9195, 201 Lost 
Creek Court from P3 – Parks and Open Space to RU2H – Medium Lot Housing (Hillside 
Area) as per Map “B1” attached to and forming part of this bylaw; 
 

4. AND THAT City of Kelowna Zoning Bylaw No. 8000 by amended by changing the zoning 
classification of a portion of Lot 72, Section 5, Township 23, ODYD, Plan EPP9195, 
Located at 191 Lost Creek Place, Lot 73, Section 5, Township 23, ODYD, Plan EPP9195, 
located at 179 Lost Creek Place, Lot 63, Section 5, Township 23, ODYD, Plan EPP9195, 
located at 246 Lost Creek Lane, Lot 64, Section 5, Township 23, ODYD, Plan EPP9195, 
located at 240 Lost Creek Lane, Lot 65, Section 5, Township 23, ODYD, Plan EPP9195, 
located at 234 Lost Creek Lane, Lot 66, Section 5, Township 23, ODYD, Plan EPP9195, 
located at 228 Lost Creek Lane, Lot 67, Section 5, Township 23, ODYD, Plan EPP9195, 
located at 222 Lost Creek Lane, Lot 68, Section 5, Township 23, ODYD, Plan EPP9195, 
located at 216 Lost Creek Lane, Lot 69, Section 5, Township 23, ODYD, Plan EPP9195, 
located at 210 Lost Creek Lane from RU1H - Large Lot Housing (Hillside Area) to RU2H 
– Medium Lot Housing (Hillside Area) as per Map “B1” attached to and forming part of 
this bylaw; 
 

5. AND FURTHER THAT City of Kelowna Zoning Bylaw No. 8000 by amended by changing 
the zoning classification of a portion of Lot 12, Section 5, Township 23, ODYD, Plan 
EPP9195, located at 1410 Rocky Point Drive from P3 – Parks & Open Space to RU1H - 
Large Lot Housing (Hillside Area) as per Map “B1” attached to and forming part of this 
bylaw. 
  

6. This bylaw shall come into full force and effect and is binding on all persons as and 
from the date of adoption. 

 
 

47



Read a first time by the Municipal Council this 
 
 
Considered at a Public Hearing on the 
 
 
Read a second and third time by the Municipal Council this 
 
 
 
 
Adopted by the Municipal Council of the City of Kelowna this 
 
 
 
 

 
Mayor 

 
 
 
 

 
City Clerk 

  

48



Bylaw No. 10820 – Page 3 
 

49



Report to Council 
 

 

Date: 

 
March 13, 2013 
 

Rim No. 
 

0600-10 

To:  
 

City Manager 
 

From: 
 

City Clerk 

Subject: 
 

Amendment of Bylaw No. 10816 (TA13-0003) and to rescind of Bylaw No. 10808 
(TA13-0002) 

 Report Prepared by: C. Boback, Legislative Coordinator 

 

Recommendation: 
 
THAT Council receives for information the Report from the City Clerk dated March 13, 2013 
with respect to rescinding Bylaw No. 10808 (TA13-0002) and amending Bylaw No. 10816 
(TA13-0003); 
 
AND THAT Bylaw No. 10808 for Text Amendment Application No. TA13-0002 be forwarded for 
rescindment consideration; 
 
AND FURTHER THAT Bylaw No. 10816 for Text Amendment No. TA13-0003 be forwarded for 
amendment at first reading. 
 
Purpose:  
 
To consider combining the two text amendment bylaws into one text amendment bylaw. 
 
Background: 
 
Staff proposed to amend the RM-3 Low Density Multiple Housing Zone along with the 
Brookside rezoning application.  As the Brookside application was withdrawn from the March 
12 public hearing at the request of the applicant, staff recommends the proposed RM-3 
changes be added to the broader Zoning Bylaw text amendment considered by Council March 
11.  
 
This requires the merging of the two text amendment bylaws into one. The amendments in 
Bylaw 10816 will be considered at the March 26, 2013 Public Hearing.  
 
Considerations not applicable to this report: 
Internal Circulation: 
Legal/Statutory Authority: 
Legal/Statutory Procedural Requirements: 

50



Existing Policy: 
Financial/Budgetary Considerations: 
Personnel Implications: 
External Agency/Public Comments: 
Communications Comments: 
Alternate Recommendation: 
 
 
 
Submitted by:  
 
 
S. Fleming, City Clerk 
 
 
cc: Manager, Urban Land Use 
 

51



  

CITY OF KELOWNA 
 
 

BYLAW NO. 10808 
 

Text Amendment No. TA13-0002 –Amendment to the City of Kelowna 
Zoning Bylaw No. 8000 – RM3 – Low Density Multiple Housing Zone 

 

 
The Municipal Council of the City of Kelowna, in open meeting assembled, enacts that City of 
Kelowna Zoning Bylaw No. 8000 be amended as follows: 
 
1. THAT 13.9 RM3 – Low Density Multiple Housing,  13.9.6 Development Regulations be 

amended by deleting sub-paragraph (a) that reads: 
 
“(a) The maximum floor area ratio is 0.5, except it is 0.55 with a housing agreement 

pursuant to the provisions of Section 6.9.  Where parking spaces are provided 
totally beneath habitable space of a principal building or beneath useable common 
amenity areas providing that in all cases, the parking spaces are screened from 
view, an amount may be added to the floor area ratio equal to 0.2 multiplied by 
the ratio of such parking spaces to the total required parking spaces, but in no 
case shall this amount exceed 0.2.” 

And replacing it with the following: 
 
“(a) The maximum floor area ratio is 0.75. 
 
 Where at least 75% parking spaces are provided totally beneath habitable space of a 

principal building, beneath useable common amenity areas, or in a garage/carport 
providing that in all cases, the parking spaces are screened from public view, the 
floor area ratio may be increased by 0.05. 

 
 The floor area ratio may be increased by a further 0.1 for a development 

constructed in an Urban Centre (as defined by Kelowna’s Official Community Plan).” 
 

2. This bylaw shall come into full force and effect and is binding on all persons as and from 
the date of adoption. 

 
Read a first time by the Municipal Council this 25th day of February, 2013. 
 
Rescinded at first reading by the Municipal Council this  
 
Considered at a Public Hearing on the  
 
Read a second and third time by the Municipal Council this  
 
Approved under the Transportation Act this  
___________________________________________________________________ 
(Approving Officer-Ministry of Transportation and Infrastructure) 
 
Adopted by the Municipal Council of City of Kelowna on the   

 
Mayor 

 
City Clerk 

52



CITY OF KELOWNA 
 
 

BYLAW NO. 10816 
 

Text Amendment No. TA13-0003 –Amendment to the City of Kelowna 
Zoning Bylaw No. 8000 – Miscellaneous Amendments 

 

 
The Municipal Council of the City of Kelowna, in open meeting assembled, enacts that City of Kelowna 
Zoning Bylaw No. 8000 be amended as follows: 
 

1. THAT Section 2 – Interpretation, 2.3 General Definitions, 2.3.3 be amended by adding the 
following in the appropriate location: 

 
“PERMEABLE DRIVE SURFACES AND PARKING means pavement with a base and sub-
base that allows the movement of storm water through the surface (includes: pervious 
concrete, porous asphalt, paving stones or concrete or plastic-based pavers). The use 
of this drive-surface treatment may be restricted from use on primary fire truck access 
routes.” 

 
2. AND THAT Section 6 – General Development Regulations, 6.5 Accessory Development, 6.5.8  

be amended by deleting sub-paragraph (c) that reads: 
 

“mechanical equipment shall be located to comply with the side yard setback for an 
accessory building or structure.” 

 
and replacing it with the following: 

 
“(c) Mechanical equipment shall be located to comply with the side yard setback for 
an accessory building or structure in all residential zones with the exception of the 
RU3 and RU3h zones. The minimum side yard setback for mechanical equipment (air 
conditioning units and heat pumps) in the RU2, RU3 zones is 0.2m.” 

 
3. AND THAT Section 6 – General Development Regulations, 6.10 Setback from Provincial 

Highways, be amended by deleting sub-paragraph 6.10.1 that reads: 
 

“All buildings and structures on lots abutting Highway 97 or Highway 33, shall not be 
closer than 15.0 m to the Highway, except where located in an urban centre, it may be 
no closer than 4.5 m.” 

 
and replacing it with the following: 

 
“6.10.1 All buildings and structures on lots abutting Highway 97 or Highway 33, shall 
not be closer than 4.5m to any lot line abutting the highway.” 

 
4. AND THAT Section 8 Parking and Loading, 8.1 Off-Street Vehicle Parking heading Size be 

amended by adding “and Ratio” after “Size” 
 

5. AND THAT Section 8 Parking and Loading, 8.1 Off-Street Vehicle Parking, 8.1.11 be 
amended by adding “and parking lot layout” after “parking space”.  
 

6. AND THAT Section 8 Parking and Loading, 8.1 Off-Street Vehicle Parking, 8.1.11 be 
amended by deleting sub-paragraph (a) that reads: 

 

53



“Except as provided below, each required off-street parking space shall be a minimum 
of 2.5 m in width with a minimum clear length of 6.0 m exclusive of access drives or 
aisles, ramps, columns. Parking spaces shall have a vertical clearance of at least 2.0 
m. For parallel parking, the length of the parking spaces shall be increased to 7.0 m, 
except that an end space with an open end shall be a minimum of 5.5 m. For parking 
spaces other than parallel parking spaces, up to 40% of the required parking spaces 
may be of a length shorter than that required above, to a minimum of 5.0 m.” 

 
And replacing it with the following: 

 
“(a) 

 Length Width Height 

a) Full Size Vehicle Parking 
space 

6.0m 2.5m 2.0m 

b) Medium Size Vehicle 
Parking Space 

4.8m 2.3m 2.0m 

c) Compact 
Vehicle/Motorcycle 
Parking Space 

3.4m 2.0m 2.0m 

d) Regular Parallel parking 
space 

7.0m 2.6m 2.0m 

e) Small Parallel Parking 
Space 

6.7m 2.3m 2.0m 

f) Boat Launch Parking 
Space 

12.0m 3.0m 2.0m 

g) Parking for persons with 
disabilities 

6.0m 3.7m 2.0m 

h) All two-way drive aisles 
serving 90 degree parking 
(parking lot/parkade). 

 7.0m 2.0m 

i) All two-way surface drive 
aisles in residential strata 
developments 

 6.0m  

j) One way drive aisles (60 
degree parking) 

 5.5m 2.0m 

k) One way drive aisles (45 
degree parking) 

 3.6m 2.0m 

l) Where the use of a 
parking space is limited 
on both sides by a wall or 
a column 

 3.0m 
(unobstructed 
with from 
face to face 
of column) 

2.0m 

m) Where the use of a 
parking space is limited 
on one side by a wall or 
column 

 2.7m (or 
3.0m if a 
door opens 
into that one 
side) 

2.0m 

n) Where a building door 
opens into the parking 
space on its long side. 

 3.3m 
(unobstructed 
width) 

2.0m 

*Note: Length, width and height measurements must be clear of obstructions (access aisles, ramps, 

columns). Spacing measurements shall be taken from the inside to inside of columns.” 

 

 

 

 

54



7. AND THAT Section 8  Parking and Loading, 8.1 Off-Street Vehicle Parking, 8.1.11 be 
amended by deleting sub-paragraph (b) that reads: 

 
“Where the use of a parking space is limited on both sides by a wall or a column, the 
unobstructed width from face to face of the obstructions shall be 3.0m, and if in this 
case, a building door opens into the parking space on its long side, the unobstructed 
width shall be 3.3 m. Where the use of a parking space is limited to one side by a wall 
or a column, the unobstructed width of the parking space shall be 2.7 m, and if in this 
case, a building door opens into the parking space on its long side, the unobstructed 
width shall be 3.0 m.” 

 
And replacing it with the following: 

 
“(b) 

Parking Stall 
Type Ratio By 
Use: 

Full Size 
Vehicle 
Parking Stalls 

Medium Size 
Vehicle 
Parking Stalls 

Compact Car/ 
Motorcycle 
Parking Stalls 

Single Family 
Residential 
 
Carriage House 

50% Minimum  50% Maximum 
 
 
Medium Car 
Stall is 
minimum 
requirement 

0% 

Multi-Family 
Town 
house/Row 
House 

50% Minimum 50% Maximum 0% 

Multi-family 
Residential 

50% 40% 10% 

Commercial 50% 40% 10% 

Industrial 70% 30% 0% 

Institutional 50% 40% 10% 

 
 

8. AND THAT Section 13 – Urban Residential Zones, 13.8 RM2 – Low Density Row Housing RM2h 
– Low Density Row Housing (Hillside Area), 13.8.5 Subdivision Regulations be amended by 
adding a new sub-paragraph in its appropriate location as follows: 
 

“(d) A row-house development in this zone may be subdivided into lots smaller than 
the Subdivision Regulations listed above in 13.8.5 (a), (b) and (c) provided that:  
 

i) a Party Wall Agreement is registered on title; and  
ii) the Subdivision occurs in accordance with Preliminary Layout Review Letter 
issued by the City of Kelowna; and 
iii) the site is comprehensively developed under a single development permit.” 

 
9. AND THAT Section 13 – Urban Residential Zones, 13.8 RM2 – Low Density Row Housing RM2h 

– Low Density Row Housing (Hillside Area), 13.8.6 Development Regulations be amended by 
deleting sub-paragraph (a) that reads: 

 
“(a) The maximum floor area ratio is 0.5, except it is 0.55 with a housing 

agreement pursuant to the provisions of Section 6.9. Where screened parking 
spaces are provided totally under habitable or common amenity areas, the 
floor area ratio may be increased by 0.08 multiplied by the ratio of such 
parking spaces to the total required up to a maximum of 0.08.” 

 

55



And replacing it with the following: 
 

“(a) The maximum site floor area ratio is 0.65.  
 
Where at least 50% of parking spaces are provided totally under habitable areas, 
common amenity areas or in garages/carports, the site floor area ratio may be 
increased by 0.05. 
 
The site floor area ratio may be increased by a further 0.1 for a development 
constructed in an Urban Centre (as defined by Kelowna’s Official Community 
Plan).” 

 
10. AND THAT Section 13 – Urban Residential Zones, 13.8 RM2 – Low Density Row Housing RM2h 

– Low Density Row Housing (Hillside Area), 13.8.6 be amended by deleting sub-paragraph (b) 
that reads: 

 
“(b) The maximum site coverage is 45%, provided that the maximum site coverage 

of buildings, driveways, and parking areas is 50%.” 
 
And replacing it with the following: 

 
“(b) The maximum site coverage is 50% provided that the maximum site coverage 

of buildings, driveways, and parking areas is 55%. This may be increased by 5% 
(to a maximum of 60%) for permeable drive surfaces and parking.” 

 
11. AND THAT Section 13 – Urban Residential Zones, 13.8 RM2 – Low Density Row Housing RM2h 

– Low Density Row Housing (Hillside Area), 13.8.6 be amended by deleting sub-paragraph (d) 
that reads: 

 
“(d) The minimum site front yard is 4.5m. except it is 6.0m for a garage or carport. 

In RM2h zones, the minimum site front yard is 3.0m except it is 6.0m measured 
from the back of curb or a sidewalk, whichever is closest, to a garage or 
carport having vehicular entry from the front.” 

 
And replacing it with the following: 

 
“(d)  The minimum site front yard is 1.5m for ground-oriented housing with a front 

door facing the street. In any other circumstance, the site front yard is 4.5m or 
6.0m for a garage or carport. 
 
In RM2h zones, the minimum site front yard is 3.0m from a flanking street 
except it is 6.0m measured from the back of curb or a sidewalk, whichever is 
closest, to a garage or carport having vehicular entry from the front.” 

 
12. AND THAT Section 13 – Urban Residential Zones, 13.8 RM2 – Low Density Row Housing RM2h 

– Low Density Row Housing (Hillside Area), 13.8.6 be amended by deleting sub-paragraph (e) 
that reads: 

 
“(e) The minimum site side yard is 4.0m for a 1 or 1½ storey portion of a building 

or accessory building or structure and 4.5m for a 2 or 2 ½ storey portion of a 
building except it is 4.5 from a flanking street unless there is a garage it shall 
be 6.0m. In RM2h zones, the minimum site side yard shall be 3.0m except it is 
6.0m measured from the back of curb or sidewalk, whichever is closest, to a 
garage or carport having vehicular entry from the front. Where there is no 
direct vehicular access to the rear yard or to an attached garage or carport, 
one site side yard shall be at least 3.0m.” 

 
And replacing it with the following: 

56



“(e)   The minimum site side yard is 4.0m. From a flanking street the side yard 
setback is 4.5m except it may be reduced to 1.5m for ground-oriented housing 
with a front door facing that street (front doors may face either the fronting or 
flanking street). The site side yard to a garage or carport is 6.0m. 
 
In RM2h zones, the minimum site side yard from a flanking street shall be 
3.0m except it is 6.0m measured from the back of curb or sidewalk, whichever 
is closest, to a garage or carport having vehicular entry from the front.  
 
Side yard setbacks are not required on a lot line that has a party wall.” 

 
13. AND THAT Section 13 – Urban Residential Zones, 13.8 RM2 – Low Density Row Housing RM2h 

– Low Density Row Housing (Hillside Area), 13.8.7 Other Regulations be amended by deleting 
sub-paragraph (a) that reads: 

 
“(a) No more than 6 dwellings may be located in a building.” 

 
And replacing it with the following: 
 

“(a)  No more than 6 dwellings may be located in a building in the RM2h zone.” 
 

14. AND THAT Section 13 – Urban Residential Zones, 13.8 RM2 – Low Density Row Housing RM2h 
– Low Density Row Housing (Hillside Area), 13.8.7 Other Regulations be amended by adding 
a new sub-paragraph in its appropriate location as follows: 

 
“(f)  Where the development has access to a rear lane, vehicular access to the 

development is only permitted from the rear lane, except in hillside areas 
where the topography would require the slope of such access to exceed 15%.” 

 
15. AND THAT Section 13 – Urban Residential Zones, 13.9 RM3 – Low Density Multiple Housing, 

13.9.5 Subdivision Regulations be amended by adding a new sub-paragraph in its appropriate 
location as follows: 

 
“(d)  A development in this zone may be subdivided into lots smaller than the 

subdivision regulations listed above provided that:  
 

i) a Party Wall Agreement is registered on title; and  
ii) the Subdivision occurs in accordance with Preliminary Layout 
Review Letter issued by the City of Kelowna; and 
iii) the site is comprehensively developed under a single 
development permit.” 

 
16. AND THAT 13 – Urban Residential Zones, 13.9 RM3 – Low Density Multiple Housing, 13.9.6 

Development Regulations be amended by deleting sub-paragraphs (a), (b), (c), (d), (e) and (f) 
that read: 

 
“(a) The maximum floor area ratio is 0.5, except it is 0.55 with a housing 

agreement pursuant to the provisions of Section 6.9.  Where parking spaces 
are provided totally beneath habitable space of a principal building or beneath 
useable common amenity areas providing that in all cases, the parking spaces 
are screened from view, an amount may be added to the floor area ratio equal 
to 0.2 multiplied by the ratio of such parking spaces to the total required 
parking spaces, but in no case shall this amount exceed 0.2. 

(b)  The maximum building site coverage is 40%, provided that the maximum site 
coverage of buildings, driveways, and parking areas is 50%. 

 
(c)  The maximum height is the lesser of 9.5 m or 2½ storeys, except it is 4.5 m for 

accessory buildings and structures. 

57



 
(d)  The minimum site front yard is 4.5 m, except it is 6.0 m for a garage or 
 carport. 

 
(e)  The minimum site side yard is 4.0 m for a 1 or 1½ storey portion of a building 

or an accessory building or structure and 4.5 m for a 2 or 2½ storey portion of 
a building, except it is 4.5 m from a flanking street unless there is a garage 
accessed from the flanking street, it is 6.0 m. Where there is no direct 
vehicular access to the rear yard or to an attached garage or carport, one site 
side yard shall be at least 3.0 m. Side yards are not required on a lot line that 
has a party wall. 

 
(f)  The minimum site rear yard is 7.5 m, 4.5 m for common recreation buildings, 

and 1.5 m for other accessory buildings.” 
 
And replacing it with the following: 
 

“(a)  The maximum floor area ratio is 0.75. 
 
 Where at least 75% parking spaces are provided totally beneath habitable 

space of a principal building, beneath useable common amenity areas, or in a 
garage/carport providing that in all cases, the parking spaces are screened 
from public view, the floor area ratio may be increased by 0.05. 

 
 The floor area ratio may be increased by a further 0.1 for a development 

constructed in an Urban Centre (as defined by Kelowna’s Official Community 
Plan).” 
 

(b)  The maximum building site coverage is 40% but may be increased to a 
maximum of 50% if private open space for each unit can be provided on a 
deck, patio, balcony or rooftop deck which exceeds the bylaw requirement by 
10%.  
 
The maximum site coverage of buildings, driveways, and parking areas is 60%. 
This may be increased by 5% (to a maximum of 65%) for permeable drive 
surfaces and parking. 
 

(c)  The maximum height is the lesser of 10m or 3 storeys, except it is 4.5 m for 
accessory buildings and structures. 

 
Any portion of a building within 7.5m of an abutting lot with a Single/Two Unit, 
Resource Protection Area, or Hillside Residential designation in the City’s 
Official Community Plan must not be greater than 9.5m or 2 ½ storeys in 
height.” 
 
(d) The minimum site front yard is 1.5m for ground-oriented housing with a 
front door facing the street. In any other circumstance, the site front yard is 
4.5m or 6.0m for a garage or carport. 
 

(e)  The minimum site side yard is 4.0m. From a flanking street it is 4.5m except it 
may be reduced to 1.5m from a flanking street for ground-oriented housing 
with a front door facing that street. The site side yard to a garage or carport is 
6.0m. The minimum site side yard from a public lane is 1.2m. 
 
Where there is no direct vehicular access to the rear yard or to an attached 
garage or carport, one site side yard shall be at least 3.0m. 
 

58



Notwithstanding 13.9.6(g), side yards are not required on a lot line that has a 
party wall. 

 
(f)  The minimum site rear yard is 7.5 m, except that it may be reduced to 3.0m 

from a public lane. 
 

The site rear yard is 4.5 m for common recreation buildings, and 1.5 m for 
other accessory buildings.” 

 
17. AND THAT Section 13 – Urban Residential Zones, 13.11 RM5 – Medium Density Multiple 

Housing, 13.11.6 Development Regulations be amended by deleting sub-paragraph (a), (b), 
(c), (d), (e) and (f) that read: 

 
“(a)  The maximum floor area ratio is 1.1, except it is 1.2 with a housing agreement 

pursuant to the provisions of Section 6.9. Where parking spaces are provided 
totally beneath habitable space of a principal building or beneath useable 
common amenity areas providing that in all cases, the parking spaces are 
screened from view, an amount may be added to the floor area ratio equal to 
0.2 multiplied by the ratio of such parking spaces to the total required parking 
spaces, but in no case shall this amount exceed 0.2. 

 
(b)  The maximum site coverage is 40%, provided that the maximum site coverage 

of buildings, driveways, and parking areas is 60%. 
 
(c)  The maximum height is the lesser of 16.5 m or 4 storeys, except it is 4.5 m for 

accessory buildings and structures. 
 
(d)  The minimum site front yard is 6.0 m. 
 
(e)  The minimum site side yard is 4.5m for a portion of a building not over 2½ 

storeys, and 7.5m for portions of a building in excess of 2½ storeys, and 7.5 m 
from a flanking street. 

 
(f)  The minimum site rear yard is 9.0 m, except it is 7.5 m where there is a rear 

lane. It is 6.0 m for accessory buildings.” 
 
And replacing it with the following: 
 

“(a)  The maximum floor area ratio is 1.1 
 

Where the required parking spaces (excluding visitor stalls) are provided 
totally beneath habitable space of a principal building or beneath useable 
common amenity areas providing that in all cases, the parking spaces are 
screened from view, the floor area ratio may be increased by the percentage 
of required parking provided under the building to a maximum net floor area 
for the zone of 1.2. 
 
The floor area ratio may be increased by a further 0.2 for a development 
constructed in an Urban Centre (as defined by Kelowna’s Official Community 
Plan). 

 
(b)  The maximum site coverage is 40%.  
 

This may be increased to 50% if the developer can achieve additional private 
open space (a minimum of 20% on top of the bylaw requirement) within the 
footprint of the building.  
 

59



The maximum site coverage of buildings, driveways, and parking areas is 65%. 
This may be increased by 5% (to a maximum of 70%) for permeable drive 
surfaces and parking. 

 
(c)  The maximum height is the lesser of 18.0 m or 4.5 storeys, except it is 4.5 m 

for accessory buildings and structures. 
 
(d)  The minimum site front yard is 6.0 m.  
 

The site front yard for ground-oriented housing with a front door facing the 
street may be reduced to 1.5m for portions of a building not over 2½ storeys 
developed.  Where the site front yard has been reduced below 6.0m for 
ground-oriented housing any portion of a building in excess of 2½ storeys must 
meet the 6.0m site front yard. 

 
(e)  The minimum site side yard is 4.5m for a portion of a building not over 2½ 

storeys, and 7.0m for portions of a building in excess of 2½ storeys. The site 
side yard to a flanking street is 6.0 m but may be reduced to 1.5m for ground-
oriented housing with a front door facing the street. Where the site side yard 
has been reduced below 6.0m for ground-oriented housing any portion of a 
building in excess of 2½ storeys must meet the 6.0m site side yard. 

 
(f)  The minimum site rear yard is 9.0 m, except it is 7.0 m where there is a rear 

lane. For portions of a parkade with lane access which do not project more 
than 2.0m above natural grade, the site rear yard is 1.5m. 

 
The site rear yard is 6.0 m for accessory buildings. The site rear yard for 
carport structures is 1.5m.” 

 
18. AND FURTHER THAT Section 13 – Urban Residential Zones, 13.11 RM5 – Medium Density 

Multiple Housing, 13.11.7 Other Regulations be amended by deleting sub-paragraph (b) that 
reads: 

 
“No continuous building frontage shall exceed 40.0 m for a 3 or 4 storey building, nor 
65.0 m for a 2 storey building. If the frontage is interrupted by an open courtyard 
equivalent in depth and width to the building height, the maximum continuous 3 
storey building frontage may be 80.0 m provided that no building section exceeds 
40.0 m. The building must be designed so the portion adjacent to neighbouring 
development is no more than ½ storey higher.” 

 
And replacing it with the following: 
 

“(b) A continuous building frontage shall not exceed 100 metres in length, and must be 
designed with appropriate architectural breaks or relief where the length of the 
building exceeds 37 metres.” 

 
19. This bylaw shall come into full force and effect and is binding on all persons as and from the 

date of adoption. 
 
 
Read a first time by the Municipal Council this 11th day of March, 2013. 
 
Amended at first reading by the Municipal Council this 12th day of March, 2013. 
 
Considered at a Public Hearing on the   
 
Read a second and third time by the Municipal Council this   
 

60



Approved under the Transportation Act this   
_________________________________________________________________________ 
(Approving Officer-Ministry of Transportation and Infrastructure) 
 
Adopted by the Municipal Council of City of Kelowna on the   
 

 
Mayor 

 
 

City Clerk 

61



 

Date: 

 
March 8, 2013 
 

File: 
 

0165-02 

To:  
 

Mayor & Council 
 

From: 
 

City Manager 

Subject: 
 

VOLUME 2 – CARRYOVERS, 2013 FINANCIAL PLAN 

 Report Prepared by: Financial Planning Manager 

 

 
 
Recommendation: 
THAT the 2013 Financial Plan be increased by $3,228,300 to provide for operating carryover 
projects and $71,129,660 for capital carryover projects as summarized in Financial Plan 
Volume 2. 
 
Purpose:  
To present the Volume 2 – 2013 Financial Plan to Council for approval and inclusion in the 
2013 Financial Plan. 
 
Background: 
The operating and capital projects listed in Volume 2 of the 2013 Financial Plan represent 
projects that were not able to be completed in 2012 or were originally planned to be 
completed over multiple years.  These projects, in all cases, result in no additional taxation 
demand.  The projects are funded from reserves, debt, and other levels of Government 
and/or other contributions. The timing of this budget volume is after the fiscal year-end so 
carryover projects can be presented with certainty of costs. 
 
All 2012 approved capital projects and eligible operating programs were reviewed with each 
department.  The carryover requests were examined and unspent budget funds were placed 
into reserve in 2012 for use in 2013.  There are various reasons for a project being delayed or 
not completed.  Of all projects, the majority are multi-year (87%), some projects were 
delayed due to ‘scheduling demands and/or City resource availability’ (4%), and others are 
awaiting grant confirmation (1%).  The balance of the remaining projects are consolidated 
into a general “Other” category (8%).  A summary of operating carryover requests greater 
than $100,000 and capital carryover requests greater than $500,000 is attached to provide 
Council with an indication of the reasons for those larger carryover projects.  
 
Provided in Volume 2 of the 2013 Financial Plan is: 
 

1. A summary of operating projects (blue sheets) for the general and utility funds. 
2. Operating budget details for the general and utility funds. 
3. A summary of capital projects (yellow sheets) for the general and utility funds. 
4. Capital project details for the general and utility funds. 

62



 
 
A detailed discussion of projects contained in Volume 2 is not planned; however, should 
members of Council have questions or concerns regarding any specific project, please 
contact Genelle Davidson Financial Planning Manager at gdavidson@kelowna.ca or x8560 
who will arrange for a department representative to be in attendance at the Council 
meeting. 
 
Financial/Budgetary Considerations: 
A consolidated 2013-2017 5 Year Financial Plan will be brought to Council for adoption by 
bylaw at Final Budget on May 6, 2013.  This will immediately precede adoption of the 2013 
property tax bylaw, in accordance with Section 165 of the Community Charter. 
 
 
Considerations not applicable to this report: 
Internal Circulation: 
Legal/Statutory Authority: 
Legal/Statutory Procedural Requirements: 
Existing Policy: 
Personnel Implications: 
External Agency/Public Comments: 
Communications Comments: 
Alternate Recommendation: 
 
Submitted by:  
 
 
 
 
R. Mattiussi, City Manager 
 
 
 
Attach. 
 
cc: General Managers and City Directors 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

63



City of Kelowna

Summary of 2013 Large Carryover Projects

Title

Scheduling 

Demands Multi-Year 

Awaiting 

Grant 

Confirmation Other Total

    Operating > $100,000

Video Surveillance System (CCTV) 0 132,130 0 0 132,130

Tangible Capital Assets 0 110,300 0 0 110,300

DCC Provision for Non-Profit Housing 0 264,600 0 0 264,600

Strategic Land Development Opportunities 0 463,830 0 0 463,830

Fuel Modification & Pine Beetle 0 182,670 0 0 182,670

Long Term Corporate Capital Plan 0 259,860 0 0 259,860

Safety and Operations, Investigation 0 100,970 0 0 100,970

Operating Total 0 1,514,360 0 0 1,514,360

    Capital > $500,000

City Hall Workspace Renovation 0 1,866,880 0 0 1,866,880

City Park Washroom Building 0 705,710 0 0 705,710

Library Parkade, Expansion 0 549,930 0 0 549,930

Memorial Parkade 0 922,450 0 0 922,450

RCMP, Schematic Design 0 652,660 0 0 652,660

Bernard Ave, Streetscaping 0 2,173,740 0 0 2,173,740

City Park, Waterfront Promenade 0 0 0 573,950 573,950

Natural/Linear Parkland Acquisition 0 1,549,460 0 0 1,549,460

Parkland Acquisition 0 1,233,710 0 0 1,233,710

Alt. Hwy 97 Multi-use Pathway Access to UBC 0 3,401,620 0 0 3,401,620

Bernard Ave Revite Plan - Trans. Services 0 1,662,390 0 0 1,662,390

Bus Rapid Transit Stations, Land 0 2,521,510 0 0 2,521,510

DCC Road, Lakeshore Road 0 1,882,860 0 0 1,882,860

Hwy Link- Pandosy 3 0 0 0 918,670 918,670

Pandosy Village Transit Exchange 1,802,880 0 0 0 1,802,880

Rose 1, Pandosy to Ethel - Land 0 715,670 0 0 715,670

Rutland Transit Improvements 0 4,308,470 0 0 4,308,470

South West Mission Roads, Incomplete Works 0 0 0 820,000 820,000

Glenmore Landfill, New Admin Building 0 3,079,690 0 0 3,079,690

Glenmore Landfill, New Site Entrance 0 5,338,430 0 0 5,338,430

Combination Sewer Rodder Equipment 0 0 0 799,890 799,890

Front End Loader, Landfill 0 0 0 640,000 640,000

Refuse Compactor, Replacement 0 0 995,840 995,840

Cedar Cr. Pump Station 0 5,933,850 0 0 5,933,850

Stellar Booster Station 0 1,041,700 0 0 1,041,700

DCC, Lakeshore Trunk 0 0 616,280 0 616,280

Customer Driven Line Extension & Upgrade 559,570 0 0 0 559,570

Drive to 1.6 Million Passengers Program 0 11,526,630 0 0 11,526,630

Mill Creek Relocation & Flood Protection 0 736,220 0 0 736,220

Capital Total 2,362,450 51,803,580 616,280 4,748,350 59,530,660

Large Operating & Capital Projects Total 2,362,450 53,317,940 616,280 4,748,350 61,045,020

Percentage of total: 4% 87% 1% 8% 100%  

64



 

Date: 

 
March 13, 2013 
 

File: 
 

0705-25 

To:  
 

Mayor and Council 
 

From: 
 

Director, Regional Services 

Subject: 
 

Intermunicipal Transportation Service and Regulation Bylaw 

  

 

Recommendation: 
 
THAT Council approves the “Sustainable Transportation Partnership Intermunicipal Service 
Agreement between the Local Governments of the Central Okanagan”, in the form attached 
to the Report of the City Manager dated March 13, 2013, in order to formally establish the 
new partnership known as the “Sustainable Transportation Partnership of the Central 
Okanagan” (“STPCO”) consisting of the City of Kelowna, District of Lake Country, District of 
West Kelowna, Westbank First Nation, District of Peachland and the Regional District of the 
Central Okanagan; 
 
AND THAT Council authorizes and requests the withdrawal of the City of Kelowna from the 
Regional Transportation Demand (TDM) program administered by the Regional District of 
Central Okanagan; 
 
AND THAT Council appoints the Mayor to the “Intermunicipal Advisory Board” of the STPCO; 
 
AND THAT Council directs the City Manager to work with his counterparts of local and regional 
governments in the Okanagan to oversee and provide direction to the STPCO through the 
“CAO Committee”; 
 
AND THAT Intermunicipal Transportation Service and Regulation Bylaw No. 10830 be advanced 
for reading consideration; 
 
AND FURTHER THAT upon adoption of Intermunicipal Transportation Service and Regular 
Bylaw No. 10830, the Mayor and City Clerk be authorized to sign the Intermunicipal 
Transportation Service Agreement. 
 
Purpose: 
 
To formally establish the Sustainable Transportation Partnership of the Central Okanagan, a 
strategic partnership of local and regional governments in the Central Okanagan to coordinate 
the regional delivery of sustainable transportation programs and projects in support of 
common regional policy, plans and interests (economic, social and environmental).  
 

65



2 
 

Background: 
 
Timeline 
During 2011, the Regional Sustainability Steering Committee met on three separate occasions 
to consider improvements to the delivery of regional sustainable transportation services and 
infrastructure.  The Committee, comprised of the Regional District Chair, the Mayors of local 
municipalities and the Chief of the Westbank First Nation, reached consensus on the need to 
improve the coordination and delivery of sustainable transportation in the Central Okanagan.  
At their last meeting (July 14, 2011), the Committee referred the information to the local 
municipal councils. 
 
Following the meetings of Regional Sustainability Steering Committee, the area Chief 
Administrative Officers (CAOs) met on a number of occasions to advance the concept of a new 
‘enhanced transportation governance strategy’.  A status report on their work was made to 
area Councils during September, 2011.  The work of the CAO committee culminated in the 
concept of an inter-government partnership which will help local governments progress 
toward the achievement of a more sustainable transportation system that supports the 
region’s economy, social network and ecosystem, while ensuring more cost effective use, 
operation and expansion of the system.  
 
In April/May 2012, the Councils of the District of Lake Country, City of Kelowna, District of 
West Kelowna, Westbank First Nation, and the District of Peachland received a report to 
approve of a Memorandum of Understanding to establish a Sustainable Transportation 
Partnership in principle.  This MOU was subsequently signed by the Mayors of Lake Country, 
Kelowna, West Kelowna, and Peachland, Chief of Westbank First Nation, and Chair of the 
Regional District of the Central Okanagan on May 10, 2012. 
 
During the remainder of 2012, an Agreement and corresponding Bylaw to formally establish 
the STPCO into being was developed, of which the adoption of Bylaw No. 10830 is a subject of 
this report. 
 
Scope 
With an initial focus on transit services and related governance issues, the rationale for a new 
inter-governmental partnership is supported by a number of mutual benefits that are of 
interest to all local governments, such as: 

 The establishment of unified regional policies and strategic transportation plans, 
which incorporate all modes of transportation (walking, cycling, transit, commercial 
goods movement, private autos, air travel and regional railways)  

 Improved responsiveness and accountability to the public and elected officials for the 
delivery and coordination of regional transportation services by providing a 
transportation ‘one stop shop’ for enquiries and concerns relating to active 
transportation and transportation demand management/social marketing, and better 
integration of land use and transportation planning at a local and regional level; 

 Reduced cost and effort by sharing resources such as staff and expertise, survey data 
and models, best practices and funding; 

 Provides a method through which local governments can monitor and evaluate the 
benefits and implications of transportation decisions based on more holistic regional 

66



3 
 

sustainability goals to reduce unintended consequences, while taking into 
consideration the impacts to society, the economy and the environment.  

 Provides a forum and collective voice to effectively communicate and partner with 
senior governments regarding funding for sustainable transportation investments. 

 Respects local autonomy and provides a way to maintain trust and positive 
relationships among local governments. 

 
Further information regarding the enhanced transportation governance strategy is provided in 
the Report to Council “Sustainable Transportation Partnership” dated April 18, 2012 (File 
0705-25). 
 
Recommendation/Discussion: 
 
Sustainable transportation is not a goal that each jurisdiction can achieve in isolation and can 
only be achieved by local governments making a deliberate and conscious decision to work 
together to effectively and efficiently plan, coordinate, manage and monitor the region’s 
transportation system. 
 
Currently, the City of Kelowna administers the Regional Transit and TDM services in 
partnership with participating local governments.  Likewise, a number of common interests 
and regionally-significant projects have been identified that would be more cost-effective if 
delivered in a more central or collaborated-manner.  In order to further the benefits of 
synergies in current and emerging opportunities, and achieve the desired ‘enhanced 
transportation governance strategy’, a “Sustainable Transportation Partnership of the Central 
Okanagan” (STPCO) has been defined and described in an Agreement between the local 
governments of the Central Okanagan (see Schedule A of Bylaw No. 10830). 
 
The Agreement seeks to establish a partnership built on the membership of local 
governments which include: 
 

 City of Kelowna, 

 District of Lake Country, 

 District of Peachland, 

 District of West Kelowna, 

 Regional District of Central Okanagan, and 

 Westbank First Nation. 

As much of the travel by local citizens and visitors is regional in nature—in that most trips 
cross multiple jurisdictions—the intent of the partnership is to collaborate in the regional 
planning and administration of transportation investments, services, and programs in order to 
best fulfill the collective goals of sustainable transportation.  Through this partnership, a 
sharing of resources (e.g. funds, data, models, staff, equipment, etc.) would be made 
through proportional contributions from each member partner agency, of which the intent is 
such that the benefit to each local government is greater than the individual contributions 
made. 
 
The value of this partnership can be further compounded with similar partnerships and 
agreements made between neighbouring regions, such as the North and South Okanagan 

67



4 
 

regions, as well as with provincial agencies such as the Ministry of Transportation and 
Infrastructure and BC Transit.  Through the STPCO, the local governments of the Central 
Okanagan would speak through the solidarity of ‘one voice’, providing a more significant and 
efficient means of communicating and working with senior-level governments. 
 
Overall, the collaborative efforts of the STPCO would allow the Central Okanagan as a whole 
to improve its ability to achieve the collective goals of sustainability central to the policies 
adopted in each local government. 
 
Internal Circulation: 

City Clerk 
 
Legal/Statutory Authority: 

 Community Charter, section 14 
 
Financial/Budgetary Considerations: 

The Budget for the Partnership will initially be based on the Regional TDM program but 
in the future may also include funding from Transit Administration and Capital 
projects. 
 

External Agency Comments: 

Due to the timing for all partners to adopt the STPCO agreement and bylaw, the 
Regional District of Central Okanagan cannot remove the TDM program from its 2013 
budget. However, RDCO has agreed to transfer the funding they receive from the City 
and the District of West Kelowna in 2013 back to the City as a part of the STPCO base 
funding. The full withdrawal from the RDCO TDM program is expected to occur in 
2014. 

 
Personnel Implications: 

The City of Kelowna’s Director of Regional Services is appointed as the Director of the 
Partnership as per the Intermunicipal Service Agreement. Other staff of the 
Partnership will be confirmed through approval of Work Plan and annual Budget. 

 
Considerations not applicable to this report: 

Legal/Statutory Procedural Requirements 
Existing Policy 
Communications Comments 
Alternate Recommendation 

 
Submitted by:  
 
 

Approved for inclusion: 
J Vos, GM Community Services 

Ron Westlake, P.Eng 
Director, Regional Services 

 

68



5 
 

 
        
 
 
cc:  Director, Communication Services 
 

Attachments: 

Bylaw No. 10830 Intermunicipal Transportation Service and Regulation 
Schedule A - Sustainable Transportation Partnership Intermunicipal Service 

Agreement & CAO Committee Terms of Reference 

69



 
Council  Presentation 

 
March 18 / 2013 

Sustainable Transportation 
Partnership of the Central Okanagan: 

 

Moving Forward Together 

70



Issues 
2 

 Transportation is a regional issue: flow of traffic does 
not respect jurisdictional boundaries 

 Current transportation patterns are unsustainable 

 Many partners and stakeholders involved in 
transportation (i.e. Province, private sector) 

 Limited funding, high cost of roads and transit 

 Need for a holistic approach: multi-modal vs. silo 
approach 

 
71



Opportunities 
3 

 Local and regional plans share common policies and 
goals 

 Local jurisdictions are “joined at the hip” and share a 
common destiny 

 Opportunities to reduce costs and efforts; attract 
more senior government funding to the region 

 Opportunity to take control of the Central 
Okanagan’s transportation future 

72



The Journey Behind 
4 

BC Transit proposes a regional commission 

for the Central Okanagan. RDCO Regional Sustainability Steering  

Comm. reviews governance and planning needs.  

Initiates creation of a Partnership with a broader  

framework to include all modes. 
RDCO Regional Sustainability 

Steering Committee forwards 

review to member councils. 
Area CAOs meet to advance 

development of the STPCO. 

MOU for the establishment of the STPCO 

formally signed on May 10, 2012. 

Subsequent progress towards the 

development of a bylaw and  

agreement to establish STPCO. Today:  Adoption of Bylaw to Establish  

              the STPCO. 
73



Purpose of the STPCO 
5 

The Sustainable Transportation Partnership (STPCO) is 
a strategic partnership of local and regional 
governments of the Central Okanagan to: 
 

 coordinate the regional delivery of sustainable 
transportation programs and projects in support of 

common regional policy, plans and interests 
(economic, social and environmental) 

74



STPCO Principles 
6 

1. Respect local autonomy 

2. Strive for regional fairness and equity 

3. Adopt a common set of Regional Transportation Values and Policies 

4. Maintain trust and positive relations 

5. Employ a consensus-based decision model 

6. Adopt Sustainable Funding and Planning principles 

7. Employ an adaptive and flexible governance structure 

8. Single point for regional transportation and senior government 
interactions 

9. Dedicated leadership at all levels 

10. Ensure the structure is adequately resourced and maintained 

11. Initial governance model should be simple with further changes as 
appropriate 

75



Scope and Benefits 
7 

 Establishment of unified regional policies and strategic 
transportation plans for all modes of transportation.  

 Provide a transportation ‘one stop shop’ for enquiries 
and concerns relating to transportation in the region. 

 Provide better integration of land use and transportation 
planning at a local and regional level. 

 Reduced cost and effort by sharing resources such as 
staff and expertise, survey data and models, best 
practices, and funding. 

 
76



Scope and Benefits…/2 
8 

 Monitor and evaluate the benefits and implications of 
transportation decisions based on more holistic regional 
sustainability goals to reduce unintended consequences.  

 A forum and collective voice to effectively communicate 
and partner with senior governments regarding funding 
for sustainable transportation investments. 

 Respects local autonomy and provides a way to maintain 
trust and positive relationships among local 
governments. 

 

77



Bylaw Adoption 
9 

 Recommendations: 

 Advance Bylaw for Reading and Adoption 

 Approve the “Sustainable Transportation Partnership 
Intermunicipal Service Agreement Between the Local 
Governments of the Central Okanagan” 

 Approve 2013 Budget (for applicable jurisdictions) 

 Mayor/Chief /Regional Chair be appointed to the Intermunicipal 
Advisory Board of the STPCO 

 City Manager be directed to work with counterparts at the STPCO 
CAO Committee 

 Subject to adoption of the Bylaw, authorize Mayor and City Clerk 
to sign the Intermunicipal Transportation Service Agreement 

 78



The Journey Ahead 
10 

 Region-wide Strategic Transportation Plan 

 Meeting of the Intermunicipal Advisory Board 

 Forum to Discuss Issues, Priorities, and Process 

 Roll-out Transportation Programs 

 Partnership with the Province 

79



CITY OF KELOWNA 

BYLAW NO. 10830 

INTERMUNICIPAL TRANSPORTATION SERVICE AND 
REGULATION  

A Bylaw to Establish an Intermunicipal Transportation Services Scheme  

________________________________________________________________________ 

WHEREAS the Participants, for the benefit of the inhabitants of the Okanagan, have 
agreed to establish an inter-municipal scheme in relation to transportation, for which 
they have authority under the Community Charter or the Local Government Act; 

AND WHEREAS the Community Charter provides that two or more municipalities may, 
by bylaw adopted by the council of each participating municipality, establish an inter-
municipal scheme in relation to one or more matters for which they have authority 
under the Community Charter or the Local Government Act; 

AND WHEREAS the Participants welcome other municipalities having a community of 
interest to join the inter-municipal scheme; 

AND WHEREAS the nature of some municipal services is such that the interests of the 
inhabitants of the region are best served without reference to municipal boundaries; 

NOW THEREFORE the Council of the City of Kelowna enacts as follows:  

Citation 

1. This bylaw may be cited as Sustainable Transportation Partnership 
Intermunicipal Service and Regulation Bylaw No. 10830. 

Definitions and Interpretation 

2. In this bylaw: 

“Participant” means the City of Kelowna, District of West Kelowna, District of 
Peachland, District of Lake Country, Regional District of Central Okanagan and 
Westbank First Nation; 

“STP” means the Sustainable Transportation Partnership Service established 
under section 3. 

80



 

BL10830 – Page 2 

 

  

Services 

3. An inter-municipal scheme is established in respect of the service of the 
Sustainable Transportation Partnership and, without limiting the foregoing, 
includes: 

(a) transportation demand management; 

(b) transit administration; 

(c) transportation and transit surveys and studies. 

Regulatory Bylaws 

4. A bylaw of a Participant applies only within that Participant’s boundaries. 

Administration 

5. There is established an Intermunicipal Advisory Board comprising the Mayors, 
Board Chair and Chief, respectively, of the Participants, to which the powers, 
duties and functions set out in section 6 are delegated. 

6. The Inter-Municipal Advisory Board will, on recommendation of the Chief 
Administrative Officers of each of the Inter-Municipal Participants: 

(a) recommend policy to the Participants;  

(b) provide general direction in respect of implementing the policies and 
programs of the STP; and 

(c) appoint the Director and Financial Officer, Sustainable Transportation 
Partnership, with the responsibilities and authority as provided for 
under Schedule A. 

Service Agreement - Execution Authority 

7. The City / District / Regional District / WFN hereby enters into and the Mayor / 
Chair / Chief and Clerk are authorized to execute the Sustainable 
Transportation Partnership Service Agreement attached as Schedule A to this 
bylaw. 

Delegation 

8. Council hereby delegates the powers, duties and functions listed below to the 
Director appointed under the STP Service Agreement: 

(a) authority to negotiate, approve and execute all contracts related to the 
provision of, and advancement of the STP, provided that the aggregate 

81



 

BL10830 – Page 3 

 

  

liabilities and commitments for the year do not exceed the budget 
amount for the STP authorized by the Participants for the year and 
provided that the liability or commitment is not of a capital nature; 

(b) authority to appoint employees, provided the employee’s remuneration 
is provided for in the budget authorized by the Participants for the STP. 

Withdrawal 

9. A Participant may withdraw from the STP by giving notice and repealing the 
Bylaw in accordance with Part 7 of Schedule A. 

Read a first, second and third time by the Municipal Council this  

Adopted by the Municipal Council of the City of Kelowna this  

__________________________ 

Mayor 

__________________________ 

City Clerk 

 

82



Sustainable Transportation Partnership Intermunicipal Service Agreement  

Between the Local Governments of the Central Okanagan 

 1/11 Mar. 1, 2013 

 SCHEDULE A 

Sustainable Transportation Partnership Intermunicipal Service Agreement 
Between the Local Governments of the Central Okanagan 

THIS AGREEMENT dated for reference the ____ day of _____, 2013 

AMONG:  

DISTRICT OF LAKE COUNTRY, a municipal corporation incorporated 

under the Local Government Act, 10150 Bottom Wood Lake Road, 

Lake Country, BC V4V 2M1 

("Lake Country") 

AND: 
CITY OF KELOWNA, a municipal corporation incorporated under 
the Local Government Act, 1435 Water Street, Kelowna BC V1Y 
lJ4 
 

("Kelowna") 

AND: 
DISTRICT OF WEST KELOWNA, a municipal corporation 
incorporated under the Local Government Act, #4 - 2466 Main 
Street, West Kelowna BC V4T 1Z1 
 

("West Kelowna") 

AND: 
WESTBANK FIRST NATION, a self-governing First Nation as 
described in the Westbank First Nation Self-Government Act and 
Self Government Agreement, 201 515 Highway 97 South, Kelowna 
BC V1Z 3J2 

("WFN") 

AND: 
DISTRICT OF PEACHLAND, a municipal corporation incorporated 
under the Local Government Act, 5806 Beach Avenue, Peachland 
BC V0H 1X7 
 

("Peachland") 

AND: 

REGIONAL DISTRICT OF CENTRAL OKANAGAN, a regional corporation 
incorporated under the Local Government Act, 1450 KLO Road, 
Kelowna BC V1W 3Z4 

  ("RDCO") 

83



Sustainable Transportation Partnership Intermunicipal Service Agreement  

Between the Local Governments of the Central Okanagan 

 2/11 Mar. 1, 2013 

 

WHEREAS: 
 

A.  Section 14 of the Community Charter provides that two or more 
municipalities may establish an intermunicipal scheme in relation to one or 
more matters for which they have authority under the Community Charter or 
the Local Government Act; 

 

B.  Each of the Participants has enacted a Bylaw under section 14 to establish 
an intermunicipal scheme in relation to the service of the Sustainable 
Transportation Partnership defined in the Bylaw. 

THIS AGREEMENT WITNESSES that in consideration of their mutual covenants and 
agreements, and the payment by each Party of ten ($10.00) dollars to each of the 
other Parties, the receipt and sufficiency of which is acknowledged by each of the 
Parties, the Parties covenant each with the others as follows: 

1. PART 1   DEFINITIONS AND INTERPRETATION 

Definitions 
1.1 In this Agreement, 

 

(a) "Bylaw" means the Sustainable Transportation Partnership Intermunicipal Service 

and Regulation Bylaw adopted by each of the Parties as follows:  

 

(i) Sustainable Transportation Partnership Intermunicipal Service and Regulation 

Bylaw adopted by the Council of the _________________ on the _____ day of 

____, 2013;  

 
(b) “Participant” means Lake Country, Kelowna, West Kelowna, WFN, Peachland or 

RDCO, their respective successors and permitted assigns, and Participants means 

the applicable combination of them; 

 

(c) “STP” means the Sustainable Transportation Partnership service as defined in the 

Bylaw; 

 

(d) “STP Materials” means all studies, reports, software, drawings, plans, models, 

designs, photographs, specifications, tender documents and other materials 

prepared or developed by or on behalf of the STP. 

 

1.2 The definitions in the Bylaw apply to any term not otherwise defined in this 

Agreement. 

84



Sustainable Transportation Partnership Intermunicipal Service Agreement  

Between the Local Governments of the Central Okanagan 

 3/11 Mar. 1, 2013 

 

Interpretation 
1.3 For the purposes of this Agreement, except as otherwise expressly provided or as the 

context otherwise requires: 

 

(a) "Agreement" means this Agreement as from time to time supplemented or 

amended by one or more agreements entered into pursuant to the applicable 

provisions of this Agreement together with all other attachments to it and 

reference to a Part or a Section means the corresponding Part or Section of this 

Agreement; 

 

(b) the word "including", when following any general term or statement, is not to be 

construed as limiting the general term or statement to the specific terms or 

matters set forth or to similar items or matters, but rather as permitting the 

general term or statement to refer to all other items or matters that could 

reasonably fall within the broadest possible scope of the general term or 

statement;  

 

(c) an accounting term not otherwise defined in this Agreement is to be interpreted 

consistently with the standards, guidelines and recommendations issued by the 

Public Sector Accounting Board as authorized by the Canadian Institute of 

Chartered Accountants; 

 

(d) except as otherwise expressly provided, all references to currency mean Canadian 

currency; 

 

(e) words in the singular include the plural and words importing a corporate entity 

include individuals and vice-versa; 

 

(f) reference in this Agreement to a particular numbered paragraph, article or 

section, or lettered schedule is a reference to the correspondingly numbered 

paragraph, article, or section, or lettered schedule of this Agreement; 

 

(g) reference in this Agreement to an enactment is a reference to an enactment as 

defined in the Interpretation Act (British Columbia), and includes a reference to 

an enactment of British Columbia, Vernon, Kelowna, Westside or Penticton, as 

applicable; 

 

(h) reference in this Agreement to an enactment is a reference to that enactment as 

amended, revised, consolidated or replaced; and 

 

(i) reference in this Agreement to a party is a reference to a party of this Agreement. 

85



Sustainable Transportation Partnership Intermunicipal Service Agreement  

Between the Local Governments of the Central Okanagan 

 4/11 Mar. 1, 2013 

2. PART 2 – INTERMUNICIPAL ADVISORY BOARD and CAO Committee 

2.1 The Intermunicipal Advisory Board (IAB) established under the Bylaw of each 
Participant shall exercise the authority provided under the Bylaw. 

2.2 A committee comprised of the Chief Administrative Officers and City Manager, 
respectively, of the Participants (the “CAO Committee”) is established with 
duties and responsibilities as set out in the CAO Committee Terms of 
Reference, attached as Annex A to this Agreement. 

2.3 The CAO Committee will oversee and provide such direction to the Director, 
appointed in accordance with Part 3, as the CAO Committee considers 
necessary. 

2.4 The IAB may receive and require reports and information regarding the 
operations of the STP from the CAO Committee or Director as the IAB considers 
necessary.  

 

3. PART 3 – DIRECTOR (APPOINTMENT AND POWERS) 
3.1 The position of Director, Sustainable Transportation Partnership (“Director”) is 

established, who shall be responsible for the operation and administration of the 

service of the Sustainable Transportation Partnership (“STP”). 

 

3.2 From the date of this Agreement coming into effect the Director shall be the Director, 

Regional Services of the City of Kelowna and that appointment shall remain in effect 

until the IAB appoints a different individual or office holder to be the Director. 

 

3.3 Without limiting the scope of the Director’s responsibility under Section 3.1, the 

Director shall be responsible for the following specific matters: 

 

(a) preparation of an annual budget for the STP to be presented to the Participants; 

 

(b) hiring staff to undertake the work of the STP, including obtaining the 

secondment of staff from among the Participants; 

 

(c) developing workplans on an annual basis, or more frequently if considered 

necessary, in respect of the matters undertaken by the STP. 

 

(d) reporting to the CAO Committee, and the IAB at the direction of the CAO 

Committee, with respect to the work undertaken by the STP, the STP’s work 

plans and any other matter the Director considers appropriate. 

86



Sustainable Transportation Partnership Intermunicipal Service Agreement  

Between the Local Governments of the Central Okanagan 

 5/11 Mar. 1, 2013 

4. PART 4 – FINANCES AND BUDGET 
4.1 The IAB must appoint a person to act as the STP’s Financial Officer (“the Financial 

Officer”), who shall have the responsibility of financial administration, including, in 

relation to the STP, the power, duties and functions of a financial officer under 

section 149 of the Community Charter, S.B.C. 2003, c.26.  For the purposes of this 

section any reference in s.149 to the “municipality” means the STP and any reference 

to the “council” means the council or board of the Participants.   

 

4.2 The Financial Officer may be a person employed by one of the Participants as its 

financial officer or acting in a position where the primary responsibility is financial 

administration. 

 

4.3 In discharging the responsibility of keeping, investing and expending funds and 

securities, the Financial Officer may administer the financial affairs of the STP within 

the accounts of one of the Participants. 

 

4.4 The fiscal year for the STP is the calendar year. 

 

4.5 For fiscal years subsequent to 2013, a financial plan for the STP must be prepared 

annually and submitted to the Participants no later than August 31 in the year 

preceding the fiscal year. The financial plan, modified for the circumstances of the 

STP, will follow the format of a financial plan under s.165 of the Community Charter 

except that: 

 

(a) the planning period is three years : 

 

(b) in respect of funding sources the plan need not identify the types of funding 

sources set out in s.165(7), it being a matter within the discretion of the 

Participants as to how each will fund their contribution to the STP. 

 

4.6 The Participants shall contribute to the cost of the STP in accordance with the formula 

in Section 5.1. 

 

4.7 The budget for the fiscal year 2013 for the STP is established as $332,970, based on 

previous year (2012) figures. 

 

5. PART 5 – COSTS APPORTIONMENT 
5.1 The Participants shall contribute to the cost of the STP in accordance with shares 

based on converted assessment.  The following cost apportionment are for 2013 (based 

on previous year figures) and may change annually: 

87



Sustainable Transportation Partnership Intermunicipal Service Agreement  

Between the Local Governments of the Central Okanagan 

 6/11 Mar. 1, 2013 

(a) Lake Country:      $20,679 (6.95%) 

 

(b) Kelowna:       $225,065 (64.85%) 

 

(c) West Kelowna:      $52,765 (16.89%) 

 

(d) WFN:       $11,604 (3.49%) 

 

(e) Peachland:      $9,282 (3.17%) 

 

(f) RDCO:       $13,575 (4.66%) 

 

5.2 In the event of the withdrawal of one or more of the Participants from the STP, the 

withdrawing Participant(s)’ portion of costs shall be re-apportioned among the 

remaining Participants and section 5.1 shall be amended accordingly. 

 

6. PART 6 – ASSETS 
6.1 Any real or personal property acquired or produced for, or in the course of the 

operation of, or for the benefit of, the STP, including the STP Materials, and any 

copyright, patent and trademark rights therein (the “Assets”), shall be the joint 

property of the Participants. 

 

6.2 Effective upon the Withdrawal Date, the withdrawing Participant grants, assigns, 

transfers, releases and quitclaims to and in favour of the remaining Participants all of 

the withdrawing  Participant’s estate, right, title, interest, claim and demand 

whatsoever, both at law and equity, in and to any and all Assets. 

 

6.3 Each of the Participants, including the withdrawing Participant, will at all times 

execute and deliver such further documents, deeds and instruments, and do and 

perform such other acts, as may be reasonably necessary to effect the transfer of the 

withdrawing Participant’s interest in any Assets to the remaining Participants. 

 

7. PART 7– WITHDRAWAL 
7.1 Before withdrawing from the STP, a Participant must provide notice in writing of its 

intention to withdraw to the other Participants.  Notice may be given only within the 

last two months of the second calendar year of the three year period commencing 

January 1, 2013 and only within the last two months of the second calendar year of 

the successive three year periods commencing January 1, 2016.  The withdrawal of the 

notifying Participant shall take effect at the end of the three period. 

88



Sustainable Transportation Partnership Intermunicipal Service Agreement  

Between the Local Governments of the Central Okanagan 

 7/11 Mar. 1, 2013 

8. PART 8- LIABILITY 
8.1 Any amount required: 

 

(a) to satisfy a judgment or other order of a court against a Participant or 

Participants; 

 

(b) to satisfy an award or other order of an arbitrator against a Participant or 

Participants; 

 

(c) for a payment authorized under section 287.2 of the Local Government Act; 

arising out of or in connection with the STP shall be apportioned as a cost 
amount the Participants in accordance with the formula in section 5.1 
 

8.2 As an exception to section 8.1, if the legal action or proceedings arose from the 

negligence or fault of a Participant or more than one Participant, the cost shall be 

borne by only that Participant or by those Participants negligent or at fault, reflecting 

their respective cost shares under section 5.1, with such modification as necessary. 

 

9. PART 9- GENERAL 

Governing Law 
9.1 This Agreement will be governed by and interpreted in accordance with the laws of 

the Province of British Columbia and the laws of Canada. 

Headings 
 

9.2 The headings given to paragraphs, articles and sections in this Agreement are for 

convenience of reference only and do not form part of this Agreement and must not be 

used in the interpretation of this Agreement. 

Severance 
 

9.3 If any clause or portion of this Agreement is declared or held invalid for any reason, 

the invalidity does not affect the validity of the remainder of that clause or this 

Agreement, and the terms and provisions of this Agreement continue to be in force 

and in effect and are to be construed as if the Agreement had been executed without 

the invalid portion. 

No Partnership 
 

9.4 The Parties expressly disclaim any intent to create a partnership with respect to the 

Intermunicipal Services or the ownership or operation of the Intermunicipal Services 

Assets, and disclaim any intent to create a partnership or joint venture with respect to 

89



Sustainable Transportation Partnership Intermunicipal Service Agreement  

Between the Local Governments of the Central Okanagan 

 8/11 Mar. 1, 2013 

the exercise of their rights under this Agreement, the administration of the 

Intermunicipal Services Assets or any other matter relating to this Agreement. Except 

as provided in a Service Agreement, none of the Parties will have any authority, actual 

or implied, to act for the other as agent or otherwise or to bind the others, without 

the prior written consent of the others. 

Amendments 
 

9.5 This Agreement may not be modified or amended except by written agreement of all 

the parties hereto and in accordance with the Bylaw. 

Notices 
 

9.6 Any notice or other communication hereunder will be in writing and will be given by 

the delivery or rendering thereof to its addressee by hand, by prepaid first class mail 

or by facsimile transmission, to the address below: 

 

(a) If to Lake Country: 

District of Lake Country 
10150 Bottom Wood Lake Road 
Lake Country, BC   V4V 2M1 
ATTENTION: Corporate Officer 

(b) If to Kelowna: 

City of Kelowna 
1435 Water Street 

Kelowna, BC   V1Y 1J4 

ATTENTION:  City Clerk 

 

(c) If to West Kelowna: 

District of West Kelowna 
#4 – 2466 Main Street 

West Kelowna, BC   V4T 1Z1 

ATTENTION:  City Clerk 

 

(d) If to WFN: 

Westbank First Nation 
201 515 Highway 97 South 

Kelowna, BC   V1Z 3J2 

ATTENTION:  Administrator 

90



Sustainable Transportation Partnership Intermunicipal Service Agreement  

Between the Local Governments of the Central Okanagan 

 9/11 Mar. 1, 2013 

(e) If to Peachland: 

District of Peachland 
5806 Beach Avenue 

Peachland, BC   V0H 1X7 

ATTENTION:  Corporate Officer 

 

(f) If to RDCO: 

Regional District of Central Okanagan 
1450 KLO Road 

Kelowna, BC   V1W 3Z4 

ATTENTION:  Corporate Officer 

 

Any notice or other communication so given will be deemed to have been received at 

the time of its delivery if delivered by hand, three Business Days after the date of 

mailing if mailed and at the time the sender receives a confirmation of dispatch if 

transmitted by facsimile transmission. Each party will notify the other parties of any 

change of address. 

Entire Agreement 
 

9.7 This Agreement contains the entire agreement among the parties hereto with respect 

to the subject matter hereof and replaces and supersedes all previous agreements 

between the parties relating to the subject matter hereof. 

Enurement 
 

9.8 This Agreement will be binding upon and enure to the benefit of the parties hereto 

and their respective successors and permitted assigns hereunder. 

Further Assurances 
 

9.9 Each party will perform any act and execute and delivery any document reasonably 

required by any other party to carry out the terms of this Agreement in accordance 

with the true intent and meaning hereof. 

Statutes 
 

9.10 The obligations of the parties under this Agreement are always subject to the 

requirements of the Community Charter, Local Government Act, and other applicable 

enactments. 

91



Sustainable Transportation Partnership Intermunicipal Service Agreement  

Between the Local Governments of the Central Okanagan 

 10/11 Mar. 1, 2013 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF THE parties have executed this Agreement as of the date first 
above written. 

DISTRICT OF LAKE COUNTRY 

by its authorized signatory(ies): 

 
__________________________ 
Print Name:  

 
__________________________ 
Print Name: 

 

CITY OF KELOWNA 

by its authorized signatory(ies): 

 
__________________________ 
Print Name:  

 
__________________________ 
Print Name: 

 

DISTRICT OF WEST KELOWNA 

by its authorized signatory(ies): 

 
__________________________ 
Print Name:  

 
__________________________ 
Print Name: 

 

92



Sustainable Transportation Partnership Intermunicipal Service Agreement  

Between the Local Governments of the Central Okanagan 

 11/11 Mar. 1, 2013 

WESTBANK FIRST NATION 

by its authorized signatory(ies): 

 
__________________________ 
Print Name:  

 
__________________________ 
Print Name: 

 

DISTRICT OF PEACHLAND 

by its authorized signatory(ies): 

 
__________________________ 
Print Name:  

 
__________________________ 
Print Name: 

 
REGIONAL DISTRICT OF 
CENTRAL OKANAGAN 

by its authorized signatory(ies): 

 
__________________________ 
Print Name:  

 
__________________________ 
Print Name: 

 

93



STPCO CAO Committee - Terms of Reference   Mar. 1, 2013 

 

 1/4  

SUSTAINABLE TRANSPORTATION PARTNERSHIP OF THE CENTRAL OKANAGAN (STPCO) 
CAO COMMITTEE 

TERMS OF REFERENCE (ANNEX A) 

 

PREAMBLE 

The Sustainable Transportation Partnership of the Central Okanagan (STPCO) was established through 
the understanding that the individual jurisdictions within the region share a common economy, 
ecology, social and cultural values, issues, policies, and ultimately a common future.  The STPCO is a 
joint partnership between the District of Lake Country, City of Kelowna, District of West Kelowna, 
Westbank First Nation, District of Peachland, and the Regional District of the Central Okanagan to 
enhance the currently existing local transportation governance structure, plans, and programs within 
the region such that decisions and investments move the region towards a common goal of sustainable 
transportation.   

 

Specifically, the objectives of the STPCO are: 

 to establish a more efficient means of administering, governing and coordinating the 
delivery of services such as transit; 

 to establish a single voice to lobby senior-government for support in the achievement of 
the Partnership’s sustainable transportation goals; 

 to pool limited funds and resources to synergistically achieve more significant and positive 
impacts; 

 to establish region-wide unified policies and strategic transportation plans; 

 to regularly collaborate through senior officials and key multidisciplinary staff on 
regionally-significant projects and programs; and 

 to establish a region-wide monitoring program to measure and provide feedback towards 
the achievement of sustainability goals. 

 

The committee’s title is: 

“Sustainable Transportation Partnership of the Central Okanagan CAO Committee” 
(abbreviation: “SPTCO CC”), “STPCO CAO Committee” in short-form, or simply “CAO 
Committee” when referred to within an STPCO document. 

This document provides the “Terms of Reference” under which this committee will operate. 

 PURPOSE AND ROLE 

In keeping with the Partnership Principles as outlined in the STPCO Memorandum of Understanding, the 
purpose of the STPCO CAO Committee is to ensure continued positive relationships between 
the Partners of the STPCO and oversee the progress of the STPCO in achieving its goals and 
objectives. 

To fulfil its purpose, the role of the STPCO CAO Committee, is twofold:  

 First, it is to act as a forum for senior executive representatives of local governments of 
the Central Okanagan to discuss and provide joint recommendations to Partner Councils on 
policy and technical issues regarding financing, budgets, standards, plans, and priorities 
related to regionally-significant transportation infrastructure, services, and programs.

94



STPCO CAO Committee - Terms of Reference   Mar. 1, 2013 

 

 2/4  

 Secondly, to establish and approve of plans, programs, initiatives, and budgets of STPCO 
operations. 

 

 ESTABLISHMENT, AUTHORITY AND REPORTING 

 The STPCO CAO Committee is established by the Inter-local Agreement that establishes the 
STPCO. 

 The STPCO CAO Committee has authority over the jointly-established funds and annual 
STPCO budget, any established Standing Committees, and STPCO staff. 

 The STPCO CAO Committee reports to individual local government councils brought forth 
through respective CAO Committee members. 

 

 COMPOSITION 

(a) Committee Members - Voting 
STPCO Partner Local Governments shall appoint one (1) member to the CAO Committee.  The member 

shall be the Local Government Partner CAO, or their designate.  Each member municipality 
shall have only one vote. 

 

(b) Associate Members - Non-voting 
N/A (applicable for Standing Committees which are comprised of local government and possibly other 

agency representatives who would be non-voting) 

 

 DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES 

The activities of the CAO Committee are to include, but not be limited to, the following: 

1. To provide a forum for discussion of transportation issues of common interest to the local 
governments and other agencies within the Central Okanagan; 

2. To provide comments or advice upon request, or at the Committee’s initiative, to local 
government councils, RDCO committees, other regional committees and groups, and senior 
government agencies; 

3. To ensure proper process and consultation in regards to regional transportation plans and 
priorities, policy, monitoring, and related issues; 

4. To monitor and evaluate the achievement of regional transportation goals and strategies, 
including but not limited to; municipal plans (e.g. OCPs), the regional plans (e.g. RGS), the 
STPCO’s Strategic Transportation Plan, and other regional strategic transportation 
initiatives led by local or senior government agencies. 

5. To provide, on a regular and continuing basis, executive direction to STPCO staff on 
matters regarding all aspects of the policy research, planning, administration, and 
operation of regionally-significant transportation functions, including annual work 
programs, plans, budgets and priorities.  

6. To provide executive direction on the integration and interaction of transportation to other 
sectors and areas such as the economy, environment, and social domains. 

 ORGANIZATION 

The CAO Committee may form special purpose Standing Committees (indefinite) and Task 
Forces (ad-hoc) to provide technical and policy advice to the committee.  A separate terms-of-

95



STPCO CAO Committee - Terms of Reference   Mar. 1, 2013 

 

 3/4  

reference shall establish and guide Standing Committees and Task Forces.  Standing 
Committees may form ad-hoc Working Groups to address its functions and specific projects as 
required. 

Employees from the partner members of the STPCO shall be used to staff Standing Committees, 
Task Forces and Working Groups, as directed by CAO Committee members. 

(a) Standing Committees 
Define Standing Committee 

The following subcommittee are established as Standing Committees: 

 Finance Committee: Established to undertake activities related to financial implications of 
transportation services and initiatives.  The Finance Standing Committee may establish 
Working Groups to address specific issues such as funding, pricing, and costing.  Members 
would generally consist of finance directors/managers from each STPCO partner local 
government.  The Finance Standing Committee would report to the CAO Committee and 
bring to the attention any matters of significance to the CAO Committee. 

 Technical Committee:  Established to undertake activities related to planning, policy 
research, and administration of transportation services and initiatives.  The Technical 
Standing Committee may establish Working Groups to address specific issues such as: 
transit and transportation. 

 

(b) Task Forces 
From time to time, additional groups may be established ad-hoc to address new or emerging 
topics that are not already identified within the mandate of existing Standing Committees.  A 
Task Force is intended to be a temporary structure established with a concise (set of) 
objective(s) and a schedule for completion. 

 

 PROCEDURES 

The CAO Committee shall address procedural issues as required.  The intent is to keep committees 
flexible to ensure effectiveness, yet structured to ensure efficiency. 

(i) Meeting Dates and Materials 

The CAO Committee shall generally meet monthly, and every attempt will be made to pre-
schedule meetings one month or more in advance, and provide agendas one week prior to 
committee meetings.   

Meeting notes shall be recorded at each meeting under the direction of the Director.   

Meeting Chair 

A Chair will be identified at the start of each meeting.  Typically, the Chair shall be the CAO of the 
local government wherein which the meeting takes place. 

(ii) Committee to operate on Consensus 

Achieving consensus on matters is the goal of the CAO Committee and every attempt shall be 
made to ensure consensus decision making.  In the event a vote is required, only voting 
members may vote.  A majority vote will be required to pass a decision and shall constitute 
50% plus one of the members who are present. 

  

96



STPCO CAO Committee - Terms of Reference   Mar. 1, 2013 

 

 4/4  

 TECHNICAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE SUPPORT 

STPCO staff will provide all technical and administrative support to the CAO Committee, 
Standing Committees, and Task Forces.  Local government staff are encouraged to participate 
at the Standing Committee, Task Force, and Working Group levels, to assist in the undertaking 
of various on-going and task-specific assignments.   

 

 BUDGETS 

Requests for funding for annual operations or specific projects/studies may be made jointly to 
Member Councils.  The cost-sharing structure may be determined as appropriate by the CAO 
Committee. 

97



98



99



100



101



102



103



104



105



106



107



108



109



110



111



112



113



Date: 

 
March 13, 2013 

File: 
 

0280-04 

To:  
 

City Manager 
 

From: 
 

George King, Revenue Manager 

Subject: 
 

UPTOWN RUTLAND BUSINESS ASSOCIATION 2013 BUDGET 
 

 

Recommendation: 
 
THAT Council approves the Uptown Rutland Business Association 2013 Budget as outlined in 
the report of the Revenue Manager dated March 13, 2013; 
 
AND THAT Council approve the 2013 levy of $162,800 on Class 5 and Class 6 properties located 
within the boundaries of the Uptown Rutland Business Improvement Area. 
 
Purpose: 
  
To authorize the 2013 levy on Class 5 light industry and Class 6 business/other properties 
located within the Uptown Rutland Business Improvement Area. 
 
Background: 
 
On September 10, 2012 Council approved the Uptown Rutland Business Improvement Area 
Bylaw #10730.  Bylaw #10730 established the local area (Refer to Schedule A) for the purpose 
of annually funding the activity of the Uptown Rutland Business Association for a period of 5 
years, 2013 to 2017. Council may approve the Uptown Rutland Business Association’s annual 
budget request to a maximum amount of $176,160 per annum in order for the City to tax the 
affected properties within the improvement area boundary. 
 
Attached is a copy of the 2012 Financial Statements, the Uptown Rutland Business 
Association’s 2013 Budget and a list of the Board of Directors for 2012/2013 (Refer to 
Schedule B). 
 
Although staff have not participated in or assisted the Uptown Rutland Business Association in 
preparation of their annual budget, a good working relationship continues to be maintained 
with the Executive Director. 
 
A representative from the Uptown Rutland Business Association will be present at the Council 
meeting to answer any questions. 
 
 
 
 
 

114



 
Legal/Statutory Authority: 
Council may, by bylaw, grant money to a corporation or other organization that has, as one of 
its aims, functions or purposes, the planning and implementation of a business promotion 
scheme, with the establishment of a Business Improvement Area in accordance with Division 5 
Sections 215 of the Community Charter. 
 
Legal/Statutory Procedural Requirements: 
Council may, by bylaw, impose a parcel tax in accordance with Division 4 to provide all or 
part of the funding for a service. 
 
Considerations not applicable to this report: 
Internal Circulation: 
Existing Policy: 
Financial/Budgetary Considerations: 
Personnel Implications: 
External Agency/Public Comments: 
Community & Media Relations Comments: 
Alternate Recommendation: 
 
 
Submitted by:  
 
 
 
 
G.L. King, CMA, Revenue Manager 
 
 
Approved for inclusion:                 Keith Grayston, CGA, Director, Financial Services 
 
 
cc: 
 

  

115



SCHEDULE A – Map 
 
 
 

 
 

 

116



117



118



119



120



121



122



123



124



125



126



127



Date: 

 
March 13, 2013 

File: 
 

1825-02 

To:  
 

City Manager 
 

From: 
 

George King, Revenue Manager 

Subject: 
 

Utility Billing Customer Care Services 
 

  
Recommendation: 
 
THAT Council receive for information, the Report from the Revenue Manager dated March 13, 
2013 with respect to amending the Utility Billing Customer Care Bylaw No. 8754; 
 
AND THAT Bylaw No. 10821, being Amendment No. 4 to the Utility Billing Customer Care 
Bylaw No. 8754 be given reading consideration. 
 
Purpose:  
 
To ensure that customer care billing services will not be interrupted or otherwise affected in 
the event of a transfer of the City’s electrical utility to FortisBC.   
 
Background: 
 
In preparing for the transfer of the City’s electrical utility to FortisBC, City staff have been 
working with FortisBC along with our current utility billing service provider Corix Utilities Inc. 
to ensure that customer care billing services will not be interrupted or otherwise affected. In 
order to achieve uninterrupted service it was recommended that for the next nine months, 
from the date of transfer of the electrical utility, that the customer care billing services for 
electrical customers be maintained by the current billing service provider utilizing the City’s 
billing system. 
 
In order to facilitate a “combined” bill (Refer to Schedule A) approach for two separate and 
distinct organizations, a review was conducted which consisted of both organizations utility 
billing processes along with identifying any differences there may be with current City bylaws 
and FortisBC tariff requirements.  
 
The current utility billing processes includes a number of practices that promote timely 
payment of utility invoices, including: 
 

 A one time penalty of 3.75% is charged on any amount of the current balance shown on 
the previous invoice, which was not paid by the payment date noted on the previous 
invoice.  

 Electronic billing so that customers can receive their statements instantly via email. 

 Payment terms of fifteen (15) days from the billing date shown on the invoice. 

128



 Preauthorized payment plan option where the invoice amount is automatically 
withdrawn from the customers’ bank account on the due date. 

 The return of security deposits to residential customers who have made on time 
payments for a twelve month period. 

 Transfer to tax requirements of the Community Charter. 

 Disconnection for nonpayment. 
 
In order to better align with current private industry standards, including those of FortisBC, 
the following changes are recommended to the City’s Utility Billing Customer Care Bylaw 
which will take effect April 1, 2013: 
 
That the City of Kelowna current practice of imposing a one time 3.75% penalty charge be 
changed to a late payment charge of 1.5% which will be assessed each month (compounded 
monthly 19.56% per annum) on all outstanding balances not paid by the due date. A penalty 
reduction from 3.75% to a 1.5% interest charge is estimated to result in a general revenue 
reduction of approximately $20,500 per year from the current annual penalty revenue of 
$71,000 for water/sewer services. 
 
Furthermore, that the number of days to pay be extended from the current fifteen (15) 
calendar days to seventeen (17) business days. (Refer to Schedule B) 
 
In summary the long term impact of these changes to our current payment collection 
practices should be minimal in comparison to the immediate positive impact it will have on 
customer service; especially for those who have raised concerns with regards to these very 
practices over the years. These changes will reduce confusion on the utility bill over the next 
nine months during the combined billings and also allow for ongoing process changes. 
 
Internal Circulation: 
Carla Weaden, Director, Communications 
 
Financial/Budgetary Considerations: 
Revenue budget impacts will be reviewed for the 2014 budget after tracking actual 
experience in 2013 
 
Considerations not applicable to this report: 
Legal/Statutory Authority: 
Legal/Statutory Procedural Requirements: 
Existing Policy: 
Personnel Implications: 
External Agency/Public Comments: 
Communications Comments: 
Alternate Recommendation: 

 
Submitted by:  
 
 
G.L. King, CMA, Revenue Manager 
 
Approved for inclusion:                 Keith Grayston, CGA, Director, Financial Services   

129



130



 

Schedule B 
The City of Kelowna has three separate billing dates (cycles) which are on the 6th, 16th & 26th 

of each month. Depending on the cycle, moving from fifteen (15) calendar days to 17 business 

days will result in the following due dates:   

Cycle # 1 – Bill date is on the 16th of the month.    

 

Cycle # 2 – Bill date is on the 26th of the month. 

 

Cycle # 3 – Bill date is on the 6th of the month. 

 

131



CITY OF KELOWNA 
 

BYLAW NO. 10821 
 

Amendment No. 4 to Utility Billing Customer Care Bylaw No.  8754 
 
 
The Municipal Council of the City of Kelowna, in open meeting assembled, enacts that the 
City of Kelowna utility Billing Customer Care Bylaw No. 8754 be amended as follows: 
 
1. THAT Section 2 INTERPRETATION, 2.3 Definitions be amended by adding in its 

appropriate location the definition for Buisness Days as follows: 
 

“Business Days means a measurement of time that typically refers to any day in which 
normal business is conducted. This is generally considered to be Monday through 
Friday, and excludes weekends and public holidays.” 

 
2. AND THAT Section 8. BILLING, 8.3 Payment Due be deleted that reads: 
 

“Payment shall be due and payable within fifteen (15) days of the billing date shown 
on the invoice, provided that when that fifteenth day falls on a Saturday, Sunday or a 
statutory holiday, payment shall be due and payable on the next succeeding day not a 
Saturday, Sunday, or statutory holiday.” 
 
And replaced with: 
 
“Payment shall be due and payable within seventeen (17) business days of the billing 
date shown on the invoice.” 

 
3. AND THAT Section 8. BILLING, 8.4 Penalty Charge, be deleted that reads: 
 
 “A penalty of three and three quarters percent (3.75%) shall be charged on any 

amount of the current balance shown on the previous invoice, which was not paid by 
the payment date noted on that previous invoice.  The penalty shall be added to 
current charges on the present invoice, and the previous amount unpaid shall remain 
outstanding and shall be shown as an arrears balance on the present invoice.” 

 
 And replaced with: 
 

“A late payment charge of 1.5% will be assessed each month (compounded monthly 
19.56% per annum) on all outstanding balances not paid by the due date printed on the 
invoice. The interest charge shall be added to current charges on the present invoice, 
and the previous amount unpaid shall remain outstanding and shall be shown as an 
arrears balance on the present invoice.” 

3. This bylaw shall be cited as "Amendment No. 4 to City of Kelowna Utility Billing 
Customer Care Bylaw No. 8754". 

 
4. This bylaw will come into full force and be binding on all persons as of April 1st, 2013. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

132



Bylaw No. 10821 - Page 2. 
 
 
Read a first, second and third time by the Municipal Council this   
 
 
Adopted by the Municipal Council of the City of Kelowna this   
 
 
 
 
 

 
Mayor 

 
 
 
 

 
City Clerk 

 
 

133



Report to Council 
 

 

Date: 

 
March 5, 2013 
 

Rim No. 
 

0610-53, 1140-50-8185 

To:  
 

City Manager 
 

From: 
 

Noreen Redman, Airport Finance & Administration Manager 

Subject: 
 

Air Carrier Airport Use Agreement with Air North Charter & Training 

 Report Prepared by: Toni McQueenie, Legal & Admin Services Coordinator 

 

Recommendation: 
 
THAT Council approves the City entering into an Air Carrier Airport Use Agreement with Air 
North Charter & Training Ltd. in the form attached to the report of the Airport Director dated 
March 5, 2013, allowing Air North Charter & Training Ltd. to operate at Kelowna International 
Airport; 
 
AND THAT the Mayor and City Clerk be authorized to execute the Air Carrier Airport Use 
Agreement. 
 
Purpose:  
 
To obtain Council’s consent and approval to enter into an Air Carrier Airport Use Agreement 
with Air North Charter & Training Ltd. 
 
Background: 
 
Air North Charter & Training Ltd. is headquartered in Whitehorse, Yukon and commenced its 
operation on February 1, 1977.   Air North employs more than 200 people and contributes 
over 20 million dollars to the Yukon economy annually.  
 
Air North is the largest airline in the Yukon providing domestic passenger and cargo air service 
to routes connecting the Yukon to British Columbia, Alberta, Northwest Territories and Alaska 
(seasonally).    
 
Air North operates two Boeing 737-500 aircrafts, one Boeing 737-400 aircraft, two Boeing 737-
200 aircrafts, and 5 Hawker Siddeley 748 aircrafts.   
 
Air North will operate into YLW on a charter basis. 
 
 

134



Legal/Statutory Procedural Requirements: 
The form of Air Carrier Airport Use Agreement being entered into is the standard template 
used for all air carriers and was approved by the City’s solicitor in 1996. 
 
 
Considerations not applicable to this report: 
Internal Circulation: N/A 
Legal/Statutory Authority: N/A 
Existing Policy: N/A 
Financial/Budgetary Considerations: N/A 
Personnel Implications: N/A 
External Agency/Public Comments: N/A 
Communications Comments: N/A 
Alternate Recommendation: N/A 
 
Submitted by:  
 

 
N. Redman, Airport Finance & Administration Manager 
 
 
 
          Sam Samaddar, Airport Director and  
Approved for inclusion:              Rob Mayne, Acting General Manager, Corporate Sustainability 
 

 
 
/tjm 

  

135



136



137



138



139



140



141



142



143



144



145



146



147



148



149



150



151



152



Report to Council 
 

 

Date: 

 
March 8, 2013 
 

Rim No. 
 

0610-53 

To:  
 

City Manager 
 

From: 
 

Noreen Redman, Airport Finance & Administration Manager 

Subject: 
 

AMENDMENT TO AIRPORT FEES BYLAW NO. 7982 – KELOWNA INTERNATIONAL 
AIRPORT 

 Report Prepared by:Toni McQueenie, Legal & Administrative Services 
Coordinator 

 

Recommendation: 
 
THAT Council receives for information the Report of the Airport Finance & Administration 
Manager dated March 8, 2013 outlining recommended changes to the automobile parking fees 
in the Airport Fees Bylaw; 
 
AND THAT Bylaw No. 10819 being Amendment No. 26 to the City of Kelowna Airport Fees 
Bylaw 7982 be advanced for reading consideration.  
 
Purpose: 
 
To obtain Council’s approval to amend the Kelowna International Airport’s fees and charges 
by amending Bylaw No. 7982. 
 
Background: 
 
On October 17, 2011 Kelowna City Council approved an amendment to Bylaw No. 7982 
increasing certain airport fees, including vehicle parking fees which came into effect on April 
1, 2012, with a further increase which came into effect on April 1, 2013.   
 
In 2011 the tax imposed on vehicle parking was the 12% HST, however, effective April 1, 2013 
the HST will be replaced with the 7% PST and 5% GST.  Only GST is applicable to vehicle 
parking fees, and the tax is embedded in the parking fee for ease of cash payment.   
   
It is estimated that the majority of vehicle parking revenue comes from daily and weekly 
parking, and therefore it is recommended that the hourly and metered rates remain at the 
rate approved in 2011 and that the daily and weekly parking fees be reduced.  YLW will 
continue to offer the first 15 minutes free and it is estimated that the new parking rates 
shown in the table below will be revenue neutral. 
 

153



 Bylaw Rates  
April 1, 2013 

Recommended Rates  
April 1, 2013 

   

Short Term Lot $1.50 for first hour or part thereof  
 

$1.50 for first hour or part thereof  

 $2.50 for each additional hour or part 
thereof to a maximum of $18.00 per 
day 

$2.50 for each additional hour or 
part thereof to a maximum of 
$17.00 per day 

   

Gold Pass $900.00 $845.00 
 

   

Long Term Lot $1.50 per hour or part thereof, to a 
maximum of $11.50 per 24 hours and 
a weekly maximum rate of $56.00 

$1.50 per hour or part thereof, to a 
maximum of $11.00 per 24 hours 
and a weekly maximum rate of 
$52.00 

   

Meters - 
Curbside 

$1.75 per 30 minutes 
 

$1.75 per 30 minutes 
 

   

North End Lot and 
North Airport Way 

$7.00 per 24 hour period $7.00 per 24 hour period 

 
 
A survey of YLW’s fees and charges shows that YLW remains in the low range of comparator 
airports such as Victoria, Prince George, Regina, Saskatoon, Thunder Bay, and Halifax.  
 
Internal Circulation: 
Airport Director 
City Clerk 
 
Financial/Budgetary Considerations: 
The recommended fee changes have been included in the 2013 Budget. 
 
Considerations not applicable to this report: 
Legal/Statutory Authority: N/A 
Legal/Statutory Procedural Requirements: N/A 
Existing Policy: N/A 
Personnel Implications: N/A 
External Agency/Public Comments: N/A 
Communications Comments: N/A 
Alternate Recommendation: N/A 
 
Submitted by:  
 

 
N. Redman, Airport Finance & Administration Manager 
 
 

154



 
Approved for inclusion:                    Sam Samaddar, Airport Director and  
    Rob Mayne, Acting General Manager,   
   Corporate Sustainability 

 
 
 
 

  

155



CITY OF KELOWNA 
 

BYLAW NO. 10819 
 
 

Amendment No. 26 to the Airport Fees Bylaw No. 7982 
 
 
The Municipal Council of the City of Kelowna, in open meeting assembled, enacts that the 
City of Kelowna Airport Fees Bylaw No. 7982 be amended as follows: 
 
1.  THAT Section 14. AUTOMOBILE PARKING FEES be deleted in its entirety that reads: 
 

“14. AUTOMOBILE PARKING FEES 
 
  Effective April 1, 2012 

  
14.1 PARKING LOTS: 
 
(a) Short Term Lot First 15 minutes free 

$1.25 for the 1st hour or part thereof  
(includes first 15 minutes) 
$2.25 for each additional hour or part thereof to a 
maximum of $15.00 per 24 hours 
$800.00 for “Gold Pass” a six month pre-purchase 
program. 

 
(b) Long Term Lot  First 15 minutes free 

$1.25 per hour or part thereof (includes first 15 
minutes), to a maximum of $10.00 per 24 hours 
and a weekly maximum rate of $50.00. 

 
(c) North End Lot  & North 

First 24 hours free 
$6.00 for each additional 24 hours or part thereof. 

 
14.2 CURBSIDE PARKING METERS  

$1.50 per 30 minutes 
 
Note: All automobile parking fees include applicable taxes. 
 
 
 AUTOMOBILE PARKING FEES 

  
 Effective April 1, 2013 

  
14.1 PARKING LOTS: 
 
(a) Short Term Lot First 15 minutes free 

$1.50 for the 1st hour or part thereof  
(includes first 15 minutes) 
$2.50 for each additional hour or part thereof to a 
maximum of $18.00 per 24 hours 
$900.00 for “Gold Pass” a six month pre-purchase 
program.

156



BL10608 – Page 2 

 
(b) Long Term Lot  First 15 minutes free 

$1.50 per hour or part thereof (includes first 15 
minutes), to a maximum of $11.50 per 24 hours 
and a weekly maximum rate of $56.00. 

 
(c) North End Lot  & North Airport Way  

First 24 hours free 
$7.00 for each additional 24 hours or part thereof. 

 
14.2 CURBSIDE PARKING METERS  

$1.75 per 30 minutes 
 
Note: All automobile parking fees include applicable taxes.” 
 
 

And replaced with: 
 

“14. AUTOMOBILE PARKING FEES  
 
 Effective April 1, 2013 
  
14.1 PARKING LOTS: 
 
(a) Short Term Lot  First 15 minutes free 
     $1.50 for the 1st hour or part thereof  
     (includes first 15 minutes) 

$2.50 for each additional hour or part thereof to a 
maximum of $17.00 per 24 hours 
$845.00 for “Gold Pass” a six month pre-purchase 
program. 

 
(b) Long Term Lot   First 15 minutes free 

$1.50 per hour or part thereof (includes first 15 
minutes), to a maximum of $11.00 per 24 hours 
and a weekly maximum rate of $52.00. 

 
(c) North End Lot  &  
 North Airport Way  First 24 hours free 
     $7.00 for each additional 24 hours or part thereof. 
 
14.2 CURBSIDE PARKING METERS  
     $1.75 per 30 minutes 
 
Note: All automobile parking fees include applicable taxes.” 

 
 
 
 

157



BL10608 – Page 3 

 
 

 
2. This bylaw shall come into full force and effect and be binding on all persons on April 1, 

2013. 
 
3. This bylaw may be cited for all purposes as "Bylaw No. 10819, being Amendment No. 26 

to Airport Fees Bylaw No. 7982". 
 
 
Read a first, second and third time by the Municipal Council this   
 
 
Adopted by the Municipal Council of the City of Kelowna this   
 
 
 
 

 
Mayor 

 
 
 

 
City Clerk 

158



Report to Council 
 

Date: 

 
March 7, 2013 
 

Rim No. 
 

1862-01 

To:  
 

City Manager 
 

From: 
 

D. Edstrom, Acting Director, Real Estate & Building Services 

Subject: 
 

Free Downtown Parking for Small Shop Saturdays in 2013 

 Report Prepared by: D. Duncan, Parking Operations Coordinator 

 

Recommendation: 
 
THAT Council receives, for information, the report from the Acting Director, Real Estate & 
Building Services dated March 7, 2013, with respect to free downtown parking on three (3) 
Saturdays throughout 2013. 
 
AND THAT Council approves free on-street parking in the downtown area on the following 
three (3) Saturdays in 2013:  April 6, June 22, and one Saturday (date to be determined) 
during the month of October 2013. 
 
Purpose:  
 
To provide free parking in the downtown area on three (3) Saturdays throughout 2013. 
 
Background: 
 
In 2012, council approved free on-street parking on three (3) Saturdays in support of the 
“Small Shop Saturday” initiative, at the request of the Downtown Kelowna Association (DKA).  
Off-street parking in City-owned parking lots is already free on Saturdays, with the exception 
of the Water Street Boat Launch Lot. 
 
DKA has requested the City’s approval for complimentary downtown on-street parking again 
this year. 
 
External Agency/Public Comments: 
 
Letter received from the Executive Director of the Downtown Kelowna Association is attached 
to this report. 
 
Communications Comments: 
 
Press release will be issued to notify the public 
 

159



City Manager 
March 7, 2013 
Page 2 of 2 Pages 

 
 
Considerations not applicable to this report: 
Internal Circulation: 
Legal/Statutory Authority: 
Legal/Statutory Procedural Requirements: 
Existing Policy: 
Financial/Budgetary Considerations: 
Personnel Implications: 
Alternate Recommendation: 
 
Submitted by:  
 
 
 
____________________________ 
D. Edstrom, Acting Director 
 Real Estate & Building Services 
 
 
 
Approved for inclusion:                 J. Vos, General Manager, Community Services 
 
 
cc:  C. Stephens, Director, Communications  

G. Wise, Manager, Bylaw Services 
K. Kay, Communications Consultant, Bernard Avenue Revitalization Project 

  

160



 

 

200 – 287 Bernard Avenue 
Kelowna, British Columbia V1Y 6N2 

downtownkelowna.com 

T. 250.862.3515 
F. 250.862.5204 

 

 

 

February 8, 2013 

 

Ron Forbes, Property Manager 

City of Kelowna 

435 Water Street 

Kelowna, BC V1Y 1J4 

 

 

Re:  Free Saturday Parking on 2013 Small Shop Saturdays for Downtown 

Kelowna Visitors 

 

Dear Mr. Forbes, 

 

Please accept this letter as our formal request to offer free Saturday parking in 

Downtown Kelowna to our visitors in conjunction with Downtown Kelowna’s Small 

Shop Saturdays. 

 

Downtown Kelowna recognizes that small businesses play a vital role in Kelowna’s 

local economy by providing jobs and preserving the Downtown neighborhood.  As a 

result, the Downtown Kelowna Association will be organizing three (3) “Downtown 

Kelowna Small Shop Saturdays” throughout 2013 to promote shopping local, 

supporting small businesses and the local economy, as well as raise awareness for 

Downtown. 

 

We would like to request complimentary Downtown on-street parking on Saturday, 

April 6, 2013, Saturday, June 22, 2013 and one Saturday in October 2013 (date TBD). 

This is an important value added initiative for our Downtown retailers, merchants and 

restaurants during this campaign. 

 

We would appreciate Council’s support and approval on this very important program. 

 

Please do not hesitate to call if you have any questions or concerns. Thank you in 

advance for your time and attention to this request. 

 

 

Sincerely, 

 

 

 

 

Peggy Athans  EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR 

 

161



Report to Council 
 

 

Date: 
 

March 13, 2013 
 

Rim No. 
 

0710-40 

To:  
 

City Manager 
 

From: 
 

Theresa Eichler, Community Planning Manager 

Subject: 
 

John Howard Society – Final Report Regarding Emergency Grant 

  

 

Recommendation: 
 
THAT Council receives, for information, the report from the Community Planning Manager 
dated March 13, 2013, with respect to John Howard Society – Final Report Regarding 
Emergency Grant. 
 
Purpose: 
This report responds to a service request from Council for a report back as to how an 
emergency grant of $5,000, authorized by Council in October, 2011, benefited the John 
Howard Society’s Adult Restorative Justice Program. 
 
Background: 
In October of 2011, as part of the resolution to approve a $5,000 emergency grant for the 
John Howard Society (JHS), Council requested a report back on how the emergency grant 
funding benefited the JHS, for its Adult Restorative Justice (ARJ) program.  The grant was 
recommended by the Central Okanagan Foundation Grant Committee in accordance with 
Council Policy 218 governing Community Social Development and Emergency grants (page 4).   
 
All grant recipients are required to sign a letter of agreement with the funding 
agency/Central Okanagan Foundation.  Clause C 1 (h) of the letter of agreement reads as 
follows: 
 

h)  submit to the Central Okanagan Foundation within 90 days of the end of the 
Grant term, a detailed written report that: 

162



(i) specifies how the agreed upon measurable performance targets were met; 
provides Project statistics and supplementary data as they relate to project 
goals, objectives and outcomes;  

(ii) provides for effective monitoring of the relationships between needs and 
services and for cost sharing1 with other levels of government; and, 

(iii) includes a financial statement prepared in accordance with GAAP and    
certified correct by the Directors of the Agency or an independent auditor, 
showing all revenue and expenses related to the Project and detailing how the 
Grant funds were dispersed 
 

The JHS submitted the final report providing the required information on March 4th, 2013.  In 
its report the JHS indicated that the emergency grant was used to address a doubling of 
referrals by the RCMP to the Adult Restorative Justice program between 2010 and 2011.  
Demand continued to increase significantly through 2012; in total, 150 referrals from the 
RCMP from December 2011 to December 2012. The $5,000 grant funded training to realize 
enhanced efficiencies in staff, and volunteer resources, stabilizing the program and enabling 
it to meet increased demand.    
 
This report meets the requirements of the letter of agreement to the satisfaction of the 
Central Okanagan Foundation (COF) and addresses Council’s service request.  City Staff are 
supportive of the outcome.   
 
Internal Circulation: 
Director of Finance 
Director of Communications 
City Clerk 
 
Legal/Statutory Authority: 
Section 176, Local Government Act 
 
Legal/Statutory Procedural Requirements: 
Council Policy 218 sets the procedural requirements of the Emergency Grant Program. 
 
Existing Policy: 
Official Community Plan  

Objective 10.1 Promote social well-being and quality of life by providing facilities and 
services for all community members. 
Policy .1 Distribution of Community Resources. Appropriately distribute and locate 
community resources (such as libraries, parks, meeting places, community policing, 
recreation services etc.) so that all neighbourhoods have convenient access. 

 
Financial/Budgetary Considerations: 
A grant of $5,000 to the John Howard Society was authorized by Council in October, 2011, for 
its Adult Restorative Justice Program.  Ten percent of the grant is held back until a final 
report is submitted following completion of the work that was funded. 
 
  

                                                           
1
 For an emergency grant, this should include a detailed plan for future funding of services. 

163



External Agency/Public Comments: 
The Central Okanagan Foundation administers the Emergency Grant Program and COF Staff 
have advised that the JHS final report meets the grant program requirements. 
 
Considerations not applicable to this report: 
Personnel Implications: 
Alternate Recommendation: 
Communications Comments: 
 
 
Submitted by:  
 
 
 
T. Eichler, Community Planning Manager 
 
 
 
Approved for inclusion:                    S. Gambacort, Acting Director of Policy and Planning 
 
 
 
cc: A/General Manager, Community Sustainability 
 Director of Communication 
 Director of Finance 
 City Clerk 

  

164


	Agenda
	2. Minutes - March 11, 2013 PM Regular Meeting.pdf
	Back to Agenda

	3.1 ALTERNATOR_CityPres_13.ppt
	Back to Agenda

	4.1 Z13-0002 1244 Pheasant Council Report.docx
	Back to Agenda

	4.1 z13-0002 attachments [2].pdf
	Back to Agenda

	4.2 Z13-0010 - Council.docx
	Back to Agenda

	4.2 z13-0010 attachments.pdf
	Back to Agenda

	4.2.1 BL10820_Z13-0010_Wilden_Various[1].docx
	Back to Agenda

	4.3 BL10816.docx
	Back to Agenda

	4.3.1 BL10808_-_TA13-0002_-_Text_Amendment_RM3_-_Low_Density_Multiple_Housing._8000[1].docx
	Back to Agenda

	4.3.2 BL10816_-_TA13-0003_-_Miscellaneous_Amendments_to_Zoning_Bylaw_No_8000[1].docx
	Back to Agenda

	5.1 Report to Council 2013 Carryovers.docx
	Back to Agenda

	5.2 Report to Council - Adoption of STPCO (2).doc
	Back to Agenda

	5.2 STPCO Bylaw Adoption Council Presentation.pptx
	Back to Agenda

	5.2.1 BL10830_-_Intermunicipal_Transportation_Service_and_Regulation_Bylaw[1].docx
	Back to Agenda

	5.3 Downtown Kelowna Association 2013 Budget.pdf
	Back to Agenda

	5.3 DKA_Business Improvement Area_Schedule A.pdf
	Back to Agenda

	5.3 DKA_Business Improvement Area_Schedule B.pdf
	Back to Agenda

	5.4 Council Report_URBA_Bylaw9813_Yr2013.docx
	Back to Agenda

	5.4 Schedule A_URBA Map.pdf
	Back to Agenda

	5.4 Schedule B_URBIA.pdf
	Back to Agenda

	5.5 Report to Council - Changes to the Utility Billing Customer Care Bylaw Fihal.docx
	Back to Agenda

	5.5 Schedule A - Combined Bill.pdf
	Back to Agenda

	5.5 Schedule B - Due Dates.docx
	Back to Agenda

	5.5.1 BL10821_-_Amendment_No_4_to_UBCC_Bylaw_No_8754[1].docx
	Back to Agenda

	5.6 2013-03-05 Report to Council Air North Air Carrier Airport Use Agreement.docx
	Back to Agenda

	5.6 2012-12-07 Council Report - Air Carrier Airport Use Agt - Air North Sch A.docx.pdf
	Back to Agenda

	5.7 2013-03-04 Report to Council Change to Airport Fees and Charges Bylaw 7982.docx
	Back to Agenda

	5.7.1 BL10819_-__Amendment_No__26_to_the_Airport_Fees_Bylaw_No__7982[1].docx
	Back to Agenda

	5.8 Report to Council - Small Shop Saturdays - Mar 18.docx
	Back to Agenda

	5.8 Attachment to Report - Mar 18.pdf
	Back to Agenda

	5.9 John Howard Society - Emergency Grant - Final.docx
	Back to Agenda


